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Chairman’s Statement

ER®E

The Hon TAI Tak Fung, Stephen, GBM, GBS, SBS, P, Chairman
PS5 2 oBM GBS sBS ATt EM

RESULTS

In the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s
turnover was HK$151,886,000 (2017: HK$137,310,000). With
an increase in the profit from associates, the profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company was HK$66,620,000 (2017: Loss of
HK$10,398,000), a turnaround to profit from last year’s loss. Earnings
per share was HK25.66 cents (2017: Loss per share HK4.01 cents).

DIVIDEND

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of any
dividend with respect to the financial year ended 31 March 2018.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

AUSTRALIA

Always bring you the world’s superior quality frozen meats

TEHETRHF (] 77 785 75 A BEEL DR

BUSINESS REVIEW

Benefited from an increase in the profit from associates, the Group
recorded a turnaround to profit from last year’s loss. In the past year,
impacted by excessive supply of frozen meats worldwide, the global
business environment of frozen meats market was volatile. Coupled
with the fierce competition in the local industry, it led to the selling
prices in the Hong Kong market under pressure. Besides, as the mini
department stores operation in Mainland China did not perform as
expected, the Group withdrew this non-core business by the end of
this financial year and reallocated the resources to focus on its core

business of frozen meats trading.

Frozen Meats Trading

During the year under review, there was an oversupply of frozen
meats from overseas, however, the cost price did not fall but rose.
On the other hand, the increase in local consumption lagged behind
the increase in import volume which led to fierce competition in the
local market and depressed the local selling prices. Despite the rise in
both sales volume and turnover this year, the increase in local selling
prices was more than offset by the higher imported costs and therefore
resulted in a decrease in gross profit. For the financial year ended 31
March 2018, turnover was HK$150,590,000 (2017: HK$137,310,000).
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Retail Chain of Mini Department Stores

The business of mini department stores in Mainland China was
adversely affected by the changing landscape of the retail industry
in Mainland China, including the surge in on-line sales, the increase
in labour costs and rental, and keen competition, which led to the
continuing losses. After in-depth consideration, the management
decided to terminate this operation which was completed before the
end of this financial year.

Food Business Investment

As at 31 March 2018, the Group maintained its equity interest in
Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited (“FSMHL”) at approximately
29.98%. In response to market challenges, FSMHL adopted a
timely strategy and successfully maintaining its competitiveness
and market share, further consolidating its market leadership. The
performance of both Hong Kong and Mainland China showed good
progress and the overall business was profitable and stable. During
the year under review, FSMHL disposed a property located in Sai
Kung, New Territories and recorded a one-off gain that led to an
increase in its profit. For the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the
Group’s share of profit from associates was HK$104,266,000 (2017:
HK$15,076,000).

PROSPECTS

In March this year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of a
wholly-owned subsidiary (the “Disposal”) holding a property in Sai
Kung. Details were set out in the circular to shareholders dated 25
April, 2018. Also, an extraordinary general meeting was held on 21
May 2018 to approve the Disposal which was formally passed and
announced on the same day. It is expected that the Disposal will
be completed on 15 August 2018 and will generate a cash flow of
HK$250,000,000 to the Group, with a gain on disposal before tax of
approximately HK$199,000,000 to be booked in the next financial
year. The proceeds from the Disposal will be used to reduce the
Group’s borrowings to improve the cost structure, strengthen the
existing frozen meats business, and expand to new market of premium

meats, thereby enhancing its earnings.

With its long history and solid foundation in the Hong Kong frozen
meats market, a comprehensive distribution network covering wet
market, major supermarket chains and fast food chains in Hong Kong,
coupled with excellent and long-term business relationship with
overseas suppliers in major meats exporting countries, the Group will
continue to operate its frozen meats business and develop the trading

of Japanese premium beef business.
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In late 2017, the Group entered into a joint venture agreement
with a Japanese company, namely, Kamichiku Holdings Co., Ltd.
(“Kamichiku”), in the business of operating Japanese restaurants and
trading of beef, dairy and other processed food products. Kamichiku
is one of the largest Wagyu beef farmers and producers in Japan. The
management expects that through the cooperation with Kamichiku, it
will further enhance the Group’s position in the premium meats sector

and penetrate into other different market segments.

In the meantime, the Group’s investment in FSMHL, which is based
in Hong Kong, will continue to develop and enhance its market share
in the Hong Kong food market by adding new elements. This year,
a Michelin-starred Japanese sushi restaurant, “Sushiyoshi”, has been
successfully opened in the prime location in Tsim Sha Tsui. This
restaurant has been well received by customers for its creative menu
and sensational food tastes. Besides, in light of the rapid development
of the e-sport market, FSMHL cooperated with Hero Entertainment,
a leading Mainland China mobile electronic sports enterprise, to
add new elements to traditional snacks through marketing and brand
interaction. This cooperation will enable FSMHL to further expand its
business to Greater China market.

Following the continuous sales growth, Calbee Four Seas Company
Limited, an associate of FSMHL, will expand its production lines and
facilities in its factory premises located in Tseung Kwan O Industrial
Estate. Output quantity will be increased to meet the market demand.

For the business in Mainland China, FSMHL has always adhered
to its motto “Eating Safely, Eating Happily” when exploring the
enormous and potential Mainland China market. In order to grasp
new business opportunities and broaden its retail network, especially
the e-commerce business, FSMHL will develop its wholly-owned
company in Nansha New District in the Guangdong Free Trade Zone
to expand international trade of food imports and e-commerce business
to keep up with social trends. Currently, the products of FSMHL are
available on a number of e-commerce platforms, including Taobao,
Tmall, Tmall Global, Jingdong, etc. where consumers in Mainland
China can purchase their favourite snacks at anytime and anywhere.
Capitalising on the continuous growing demand for quality foods and
huge potential in Mainland China that will generate good earnings,
FSMHL will continue to promote the Four Seas brand as well as other
distributed food products to the Mainland China market. It is expected
that FSMHL will continue to contribute stable earnings to the Group.
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APPRECIATION WS

On behalf of the board of directors, I would like to express my sincere ARNENREFFG > WA HELE LSS
gratitude to our shareholders and our business partners for their PLEI KB L R R4 > G 28 B T8I E -
support and trust to the management team. My gratitude also extends [l o0 B 70 o 70 4 3 4 1 36 5 1T 58 0 R Af o

to our staff for their loyalty and diligence in the developments of the

Group.

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen, GBM, GBS, SBS, JP A GBM GBS SBS A Va4

Chairman FWE

Hong Kong, 28 June 2018 s B — ) EAXAZT/N\H
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During this financial year, the Group continued to focus on the AR B B4R BE > AR 4R [ 4 A R O B B A O
core business of frozen meats trading. As reported in the Chairman BEH o A T A A > R MRy N R 3

Statement, the operation of mini department stores in Mainland B RBIRAE » T AR B B4 BE 45 A 4% 1887 o o]
China was discontinued before the end of this financial year due JEAEE N > SEHI%151,886,0008 0 (—F—L4E
to under-performance. For the year under review, sales recorded at 137,310,000 70) -

HK$151,886,000 (2017: HK$137,310,000).

Frozen Meats Trading WHE S

For the year under review, the global frozen meats trading market has o] A N > BRER K A B 2 T 35 0 52 B A R 0G ME AR
been adversely influenced by the global oversupply. T AFI 2 -

Major meats exporting countries, including the United States and the TS B R RS 5 I R R AR (B Y

European Union countries, save for Brazil whose export being affected M8 fE = F—-LE=H 4R o A &35 6L B 5%
by the weak flesh meats and corruption scandals in March 2017, were AN FEN » BB RERTFORIFLBEE > Hib#E X
optimistic about global demand and hence expanded their production FEREAET M D& o )R » REREEDRE >
capacity for export. On the contrary, major meats importing countries, e R A B A A 2R 0T o R B P P A B T R AR A
like Mainland China and Russia, curbed their imports caused by the WRMBAEOR s NS 2R ESFE - RS
recovery and expansion of their internal production capacity. Hence, it AR 2 0 RE AR AR AT o AR o

led to an oversupply globally. However, the overall supplying price of
this year was higher than last year.

For the year, the Hong Kong economy improved as benefited by the BN ZERBEWIRE EF3.2% > HobREHEK
increased incoming visitors which rose by 3.2%, with a solid rebound B 1 ik 2 N OB AR 1T T o A AR AN BE N NT76% > &
of Mainland China visitors that accounted for 76% of total arrivals. T Vi R G o B AR A M 2 B - AT A A i
Although local consumption increased, it lagged behind the enlarged A1 T 56 R R 5 B R A A b G B A A R AR AR T
overseas supply and thus depressed the local selling prices and the H)BAR 2 o

gross profit margin of the Group.

Retail Chain of Mini Department Stores MR R ESUE

After reassessing on the adverse operating landscape, including the BEFHFMAMNMB S RE > OFEHLEHER
surge in on-line sales, the increase in labour costs and rental, and keen B> 55 TOSAS AL A 88 B T 8 SRR > R
competition, the management decided to discontinue this operation to P 4 L% R R IR R ARG AL O o
concentrate its resources in developing the Group’s core business. The 2l NE T B 2 OO AR B B4R BT 45 R T 58

withdrawal of this operation from the market was completed before the

end of this financial year.

Key Performance Indicators FERBHE

Management has been provided with the following key performance DITFHEELEHRBE ([ FERBIRE] &R #24t
indicators (“KPIs”) information to manage its business. Appropriate HE G AR A RS A G HAERE Bk
strategies, if necessary, are set to improve the performance after e HE L Y EEI N

undergoing the processes of evaluating and controlling.
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Due to the cessation of the operation of retail chain of mini department
stores which is no longer relevant, below KPIs are merely reported on
and related to the core business of frozen meats trading, with KPIs of

prior year restated for comparison.

MR NEEFEHEEFVFOALEE > DTHER
AR BUIR B R A0 SR 2 oA B 5 M B R
W5 B 2 KA B ERBUIREITILE -

Year ended 31 March
BEZHA=ZT—HIL4EE

2018 2017

e SIS 2 —Z -t

(Restated)

(BEH)

Revenue (HK$’000) BN (B T-8) 150,590 137,310
Gross profit margin (%)" BRE(FES) @ -0.2 5.0
Trade receivables turnover (days)®? JRE W B R ek R i (R ) @ 46 48
Inventory turnover (days)/” B CRE) @ 63 71
Operating expenses to sales (%) Rt MEGELR(FEHL)@ 7.8 9.1

(1)  Gross profit margin is calculated as gross profit divided by revenue.

(2) The calculation of trade receivables turnover days is based on the average
of the opening and closing balances divided by revenue and multiplied by

number of days in the relevant period.

(3) The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the average of the
opening and closing balances divided by costs of purchase for goods sold

and multiplied by number of days in the relevant period.

(4) Operating expenses to sales is calculated as selling and distribution
expenses and administrative expenses (excluding depreciation and fixed

assets written off) divided by revenue.

Revenue

There was an increase of approximately 9.7% in revenue over previous
year. Increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the generally
improved domestic demand in Hong Kong, as benefited by the

increased incoming visitors to Hong Kong.

Gross Profit Margin

For the year, the increase in selling prices was more than offset by the
higher purchase costs, as impacted by the global oversupply which in
turn depressed the local selling price. This has resulted into a small

negative gross profit margin for the year.
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Trade Receivables/Inventory Turnover HENE B 5 ek 17 B i
Trade receivables turnover was improved by 2 days to 46 days, JFE Wt B2 5 W e R R A5 B o 3% MU T2 R 246

compared to 48 days in previous year. Furthermore, turnover days Ko M AR RA8K o BLAL » Jii A7 7 K 0t 48 25 48
of inventory were also improved to 63 days this year from 71 days W71 R B B EM63R » T il i B A7 H e

of previous year, mainly attributable to the tighter control on the O R

inventory.

Operating Expenses to Sales V-8 -l F h

Ratio of operating expenses to sales was improved by approximately Bt BRI R ERBIRE > B
1.3 percentage points over the previous year. This is attributable to the THRILE 4 B o T B R AR B R o s
Group’s tighter control in both selling and distribution expenses, and FAT BB Sz B e T g o

administration expenses.

Food Business Investment Tt E

For the year under review, responding to market challenges, FSMHL REBEEEN > ZETEMRERINE > TS
adopted a timely strategy to find a balance between product price and BRER > PO 4E B R E T B R R SR M > ATV R
consumer demand and thus achieved stable business growth in both B RNELRFBENE -

Hong Kong and Mainland China markets.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group held equity interest in FSMHL at BKEZRZ-NEZH=Z1T—HIE > REMFH YN
approximately 29.98%, from which the Group’s share of profit of SR 2 A RE 25 £029.98% » 4 A< 45 B 3 2k 2 HEAK Tk
associates increased to HK$104,266,000 (2017: HK$15,076,000), B A i A BT % 104,266,000% 0 (ZF— LA ¢
mainly attributable to the one-off gain from the disposal of the 15,076,000%57G) » FE K H 4 BE W B A 77T 5 v
property in Sai Kung, New Territories. A ST B A ) — YO MR o

Distribution Business 12 AP 3R B

Food distribution is the core business of FSMHL. Almost half of a A AR O I £ A A% 0 SE S o DU AR A R
century since its establishment in 1971 in Hong Kong, FSMHL has — L4 HHEFEBEZS O ERNLZ LEEL -
built an extensive distribution network, covering retailers, convenience PERE R A S 4845 » W2 /N R AT ~ 200 3 g 0 A1
store chains, supermarket chains, department stores, restaurants, JE o KRBT - BRAR - &8 WEX
hotels and airlines. It distributes a broad variety of food products, Wi 22 A4 o AREL — R B A W) B2 0 2 > R
encompassing snacks, milk powder, sauces, ham and sausages from Zib s WMBEZRE DN B KBREEES
worldwide including Mainland China, Japan, Korea, Thailand, Wk gt A ARG P HOAS S SR
Indonesia, Malaysia, Singapore, Britain, France, Germany, Holland el ~ BDJE - FS2RVG R - o~ e i - 1
and the United States. All of these products are well received by B~ Ml MmER SRR 2HWEARE T WE

customer segments of all ages, as well as satisfying market demands 5o RIS A R B R E T EEE AT o
which enable FSMHL to uphold its market share and leadership

position.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

Manufacturing Business

FSMHL operates 19 manufacturing plants in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, under stringent quality control and sophisticated monitoring
systems, which have gained market trust and confidence with their
guaranteed quality. As a result, these plants have received numerous
accreditations, including “HACCP”, “ISO 90017, “ISO 220007,
“Certification under Hong Kong Q-Mark Product Scheme for over
20 years” and “HKQAA Hong Kong Registration — Cooking Oil
Registration Scheme Certification” from the Hong Kong Quality
Assurance Agency. With these manufacturing plants, FSMHL is
able to produce and market a broad variety of food products to meet
different customers’ demands through its one-stop business platform to

further consolidate its leadership in the food market.

Retailing and Catering Business

Bringing innovations for the sustainable growth of retailing and
catering segment businesses has always been the business concept of
FSMHL. Earlier this year, a new specialty store “Okashi Galleria” was
opened in Tsim Sha Tsui to introduce various Japanese trendy and
famous food products, including Japanese ice-cream of “SEIKA” from
Kagoshima and “Cremia”, and Kagoshima innovative fried fish cake of
“Qjiki”. In the meantime, the Japanese snacks specialty stores “Okashi
Land”, cookies stores “YOKU MOKU”, and concept store “Calbee
PLUS” recorded solid sales during the year.

FSMHL continues to operate its Chinese and Japanese restaurants in
Hong Kong and Mainland China which are popular and well received
by the customer for the superior management and high quality catering
services, including Japanese style restaurant “Shiki*Etsu”, Shanghai
vegetarian restaurant “Kung Tak Lam Shanghai Vegetarian Cuisine”
and Japanese style dumpling fast food shop “Osaka Ohsho” in Hong
Kong, as well as garden restaurant “Panxi Restaurant”, Japanese
restaurant “Mori Café” and sushi restaurant chain “Sushi Oh” in
Mainland China.
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Liquidity and financial resources L ) 5 2 e W % O

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated A A B — 8t DA P9 O B A A R AR R AR AT R
cash flows and facilities granted by its principal bankers. As at 31 ZEBEELEBEZRE R _-F—N\E=ZHA=1—
March 2018, the Group had banking facilities of HK$310,000,000 of H > A4E B #E A SR 4745 B4 35310,000,000% 56 » H
which 52% had been utilised. The Group had a gearing ratio of 34% as H2nRB OB o AREBMP _EF—-NE=ZHAH=+—
at 31 March 2018. This is expressed as the total interest-bearing bank H2Z &8 6 & b R 534% » 75 B8 8 A ) B 28R
borrowings to equity attributable to equity holders of the Company. FiA ok A B RE 25 B A AR A R RE RS BT Z I
Bank borrowings of the Group, denominated in Hong Kong dollars, are Bl o ARLEE 2 AT AR DT R A R > W EH
mainly short term loans and trust receipt loans (the “Interest-Bearing AHREERETTEERZELHETERLETK
Bank Borrowings”) at prevailing market interest rates. The Interest- PR (THMAAT R B Z AT ER]) - BB RE A
Bearing Bank Borrowings which are classified as current liabilities 82 B BT F) B 2 SRAT SR A — N IR - N
are repayable within one year. As at 31 March 2018, the Group held F-)E=ZH=Z+—H » REFEBER 24 LBIT
cash and bank balances of HK$68,427,000. There were no significant FEAF 68,427,000 70 o Y I EAEE R > A4 H 3

changes in the Group’s contingent liabilities and no charges on the R AR A > AR B X B A W JEAE AR AT HE o

Group’s assets as at the end of the reporting period.

The net proceeds from the Disposal, which will be completed on &SR =2 — \FEN\H 1 H 5B - 8%
15 August 2018, amounting to approximately HK$247,000,000 85 =R JE 2 BT A 3k JE A £9247,000,0009 76 (411 B
(after deducing the associate estimated direct cost in the amount i 5H A B B AS £ 53,000,000 J0) 8 18 & ()&
of approximately HK$3,000,000) is intended to be applied and 30% (FH & 7 #174,000,0009 70 ) F 15 9k 78 A 4 ) 2
allocated as to (i) approximately 30% (equivalent to approximately WIE 5 R 5 ()A165% CHE 1 £1161,000,000%
HK$74,000,000) for expanding the meats trading business of J0) AMEAREE Z — BB EE S > P R60% (FHEH
the Group; (ii) approximately 65% (equivalent to approximately R #1149,000,000% 70 ) 1% F i I8 A A< 45 [ 2 SR AT B
HK$161,000,000) as general working capital of the Group, of which as K e K15% (FHE > £112,000,0009 56) i & AR 32 1
to approximately 60% (equivalent to approximately HK$149,000,000) K (1ii)#15% (K 7 £112,000,0009% o6 ) FAE Bt A 46
will be used to reduce the bank borrowings of the Group, and as to [ BE B RO R Rt a4 -

approximately 5% (equivalent to approximately HK$12,000,000)
for capital expenditures; and (iii) approximately 5% (equivalent
to approximately HK$12,000,000) for funding the opening of new
restaurants relating to the existing business of the Group.

Staff employment BTN

The total number of employees working in the continuing operations AREHMP -F-NEZH=+—HZHEHE T4
of the Group as at 31 March 2018 was 49. Remuneration packages FA9N o I8 B I — 5 2 22 1 46k S A ) & R T
are generally structured by reference to market terms and individuals’ FERE o A R G — MR B S A A B BRI 2= A
qualifications. Salaries and wages are normally reviewed annually BRAEM B o

based on performance appraisals and other relevant factors.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company present their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and associates
are set out in notes 1 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.
During the year, the board of directors reached its decision to
discontinue the retailing operation of consumer goods, and start the
restaurant operation.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group
and an indication of likely future development in the Group’s business,
can be found in the Chairman’s Statement and the Management
Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 4 to 13 of this annual
report. In addition, discussions on the Group’s relationship with
its key stakeholders, environmental policies and performance, and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have significant
impact on the Group can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 30 to 38 of this annual report.
These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on

pages 61 to 136.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year.

HONG KONG FOOD INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2018
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and the assets, liabilities and

YA 5 26 6 4 2

AC SR B 2 TR B AR B A 2 SRR R B ~ R
1 e T 8 M B 2 2 R BE 24 % B T 8 2 RS AL
S i B T B > SEEBIE

non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements and
restated as appropriate, is set out below:

Year ended 31 March
BREZH=1T—HILEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
RN DR L ZEB-NE ZF-HE ZFNE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BWTIC  BWToOL  BWTFoL  BWTFoL BT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(B EF) (EH) (EH) (B EH)

RESULTS ES
CONTINUING OPERATIONS HEREBELE
REVENUE N 151,886 137,310 146,043 180,056 187,284
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR @R B LK

FROM CONTINUING ENEA

OPERATIONS (1) 78,100 (2,509) (8,819) 27,892 34,691
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ©B&ILEBE%
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM A DC&ILRBEK 2

DISCONTINUED OPERATION N B (11,755) (7,889) (6,730) (6,323) (9,398)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR A4 Z %]

(FE18) 66,345 (10,398) (15,549) 21,569 25,293

Attributable to: R .

Equity holders of the Company AN EIRER TR & 66,620 (10,398) (15,549) 21,569 25,293

Non-controlling interests ¥ I HE 2% (275) - - - -

66,345 (10,398) (15,549) 21,569 25,293

ZE-N\FER |
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION B 5 R B 2 (48)
(continued)

As at 31 March

R=HAH=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
SR N DR -LFE ZFNE SR L4 ZF e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT  BEFL  E¥FTF BT EBWFL

ASSETS AND KA

LIABILITIES
TOTAL ASSETS B 674,190 566,409 589,274 635,181 601,975
TOTAL LIABILITIES =R (192,176) (181,663) (174,142) (191,121) (174,489)

482,014 384,746 415,132 444,060 427,486

The information set out above does not form part of the audited ke RO S o O A B R R — A e

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL B A

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the T AE P9 A 2 B B A Sl 406 53 Bl o

year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES wf 5k 23 Ik Gk

At 31 March 2018, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, RZEZ—-NFE=H=+—H > RIEFE A& 5&EHH
calculated in accordance with the provisions of sections 291, 297 291 ~ 297 B 2994 7t 55 » A A W] Wl Bt 43 IR Z 4k A 2
and 299 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted to 26,846,000%5 T °

HK$26,846,000.

BORROWINGS i 2K

Details of the Group’s bank borrowings at the end of the reporting 7 4

TP i A8 IR 2 SRAT A K 19 SR 10 B s

period are set out in note 22 to the financial statements. B 522 -
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman)

TAI Chun Leung (Vice Chairman) (appointed on 1 January 2018)
MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis (Managing Director)

TAI Chun Kit

TSE Siu Wan

Independent non-executive directors:

CHAN Kay Cheung
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John
CHEUNG Wing Choi

Mr. Fung Kwok Wing serves as a director of a subsidiary of the
Company during the year.

In accordance with articles 96 and 105(A) of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Tai Chun Leung, Mr. Man Wing Cheung, Ellis,
Mr. Tse Siu Wan and Mr. Chan Kay Cheung will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

The Company has received written annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, Mr. Lan Yee Fong, Steve
John and Mr. Cheung Wing Choi pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) and the
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive directors
are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION W4

The directors’ remuneration is determined by the Company’s board of HREMWETTHAARERFORBEEFAERAAZ
directors with reference to directors’ involvement in the Company’s B2 BB~ RN BT S BT 35 R0 A AT A 5 I
affairs, experience, responsibilities and the prevailing market level KPEEE > UKHEARARFHME L GHaH o A R®H

of remuneration of executives of similar positions, and reviewed by HZMEFHEHRAMBEHR LGS - HIMWEZE G
the remuneration committee of the Company. Details of remuneration Ik B K B AR R R AN B R R AR R [ SR EE
of the directors are set out in note 8 to the financial statements. A e

Particulars of the duties and responsibilities of the remuneration
committee are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this

annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION W i T Z 998 e S

During the year ended 31 March 2018, a permitted indemnity BEZFE-NE=ZH=+—HILEE » KAFCH
provision as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance was in AT 0 S (R 26 AW A R ) DAEAC A v] #
force for indemnities against liabilities incurred by the directors of the RSB =5 B A BT

Company to a third party.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN HAR R Y~ KPS 30 2 B4
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR

CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements, no director Bk B 25 i 15 PR SR 20T R B A > B E R EFEZH
nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either LN R AN AR B DY M 2 7 AR A ] B AR 2 ] B I 4 D
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of JIt T S Z AT S A A T S 5 T R R R AR
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any Aoy~ BRPERA L P E SRS =AM -

of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S W KT
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS iy A W66 3 1
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING ¥R
SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the directors N B NE=ZH=+—H KA EEFZLER
and chief executive of the Company in the shares and underlying TN B AR A w s AT /g ) (e & Ak
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within B ] (T3 25 B B R 1) S8 XVIRR) JBe 4 Je #
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance B TR 2 WE 2 T 8 AL B O B OU) 8 IR A1) S 35240
(the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the BB € 28 T A7 B 2 B ST T P SR AR I T AT A
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to WHETHHFR Z sy A (s Rl ) EHm e
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code A E R WA P WAWE

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model

Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company JAAS 2 w3 B ey 2 W B

Number of ordinary shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

P 05 T B B Oy 2 B H ~ B B B b 2

Personal Corporate Approximate
interests interests percentage of
(held as (interests of the Company’s
beneficial controlled Total total issued
owner) corporation) interests shares
2 i il 2 fliA 2 v B AT
fidl A B A () 2 ) JBe By 48 B 2 BE &Y
Name of directors HEHLW (B2 H) ZHidR) HE 23 B4 51 "k
TAI Tak Fung, Stephen A 6,730,000 84,009,177 © 90,739,177 34.95%
CHAN Kay Cheung B B 800,000 - 800,000 0.31%
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John ¥ 3% Jy 800,000 - 800,000 0.31%
Notes: et -
(i)  Such shares comprise: (i) W B
(a) 30,914,000 shares, representing approximately 11.91% of the (a) I %30,914,000/8 B 3 > 46 A 2 W] B 847
Company’s total issued shares, are owned by Careful Guide Limited B BB A11.91% > J5 HCareful Guide
(“CGL™), which is wholly owned by Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen. Limited ([CGLJ) #4 » CGLHI H1 8% %
Therefore, his spouse, Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly, is deemed to be A EEHER - FIE > HEHE A LB
interested in the 30,914,000 shares held by CGL; 1A BER CGLIT A 230,914,000 4 2
WERR 5
(b) 52,907,250 shares, representing approximately 20.38% of the (b) M 552,907,250/ e 4y > 4 A A\ OB AT
Company’s total issued shares, are owned by Special Access B 48 B #920.38% > J3 HiSpecial Access
Limited (“SAL”), which is wholly owned by Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Limited ([SALJ) 4 > SALHI i 8 7 1 S
Stephen and his spouse, Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly. Accordingly, AREBBEF L L2 EHA - Kt
Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly are W e R W S LB A B SAL
deemed to be interested in the 52,907,250 shares held by SAL; and R 252,907,250 ey 2 HERS 5 K

TE-N\EER | ERARRREERERLT



Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(i) Such shares comprise: (continued)

(c) 187,927 shares, representing approximately 0.072% of the
Company’s total issued shares, are beneficially owned by Four Seas
Mercantile Holdings Limited (“FSMHL”). CGL and SAL, whose
beneficial owners are set out under Notes (i)(a) and (i)(b) above,
in aggregate hold more than one-third of the total issued shares of
FSMHL. Accordingly, Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and his spouse,
Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly, are deemed to be interested in the
187,927 shares held by FSMHL.

Long positions in the ordinary shares of an associated corporation

Director’s interests in the equity of FSMHL as an associated

corporation are as follows:

AT A
0B B B
7 (&)

Ex

A
B

FH
\N-&l
=S
Ev =y

B
il

X = e
P HFED

Ly
ik
/B

JRAR 2y v 3 BB By 2 A A ()
Mfat : (80

® S B A ()

(©) M 187,927 E A > Al A 23 B O BEAT R

1y 488 £90.072% » )% B Y U 4R 9 B A

w (TPYNEEM ]) B8R - MCGLKXSAL

GLEE R A AR S REG) () K () (b))

HIFHE UWEIE =0 — 2 BT RN

AR o PR o BTE N A R UG A W SR

2wt A BT O N 4R T R AT 2 187,927
B Z R 2% o

TP R OB 2 I B DB By 2 % Y

A F S A A U s T — O 4 T e R A 2 T A B
T

Number of ordinary shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

Pt 4 9 B B Oy Z W H B B e A

Approximate

Personal Corporate percentage of

interests interests such associated

(held as (interests of corporation’s

beneficial controlled Total total issued

owner) corporation) interests shares

2 vi) B 2% Mg LM e

i A HE 2% (FEW A w AT B Oy A8

Name of director W AW (EERFEA) ZHER) HERME XBAHER
TAI Tak Fung, Stephen Wmy - 259,478,000 © 259,478,000 67.52%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of an associated corporation

(continued)

Notes:
(i)  Such shares comprise:

(a) 70,000,000 shares, representing approximately 18.22% of the total
issued shares of FSMHL, are owned by CGL, which is wholly
owned by Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen. Therefore, his spouse,
Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly, is deemed to be interested in the
70,000,000 shares held by CGL;

(b) 74,250,000 shares, representing approximately 19.32% of the total
issued shares of FSMHL, are owned by SAL, which is wholly
owned by Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and his spouse, Ms. Wu
Mei Yung, Quinly. Accordingly, Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and
Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly are deemed to be interested in the
74,250,000 shares held by SAL; and

(c) 115,228,000 shares, representing approximately 29.98% of the total
issued shares of FSMHL, are owned by Capital Season Investments
Limited, which is wholly owned by Advance Finance Investments
Limited (“AFIL”). Since AFIL is wholly owned by the Company,
which in turn Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen, SAL, CGL and FSMHL
in aggregate hold more than one-third of the total issued shares of
the Company, and therefore, Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and his
spouse, Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly, are deemed to have interests in
the 115,228,000 shares of FSMHL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the directors
and chief executive of the Company had any interests and short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, none of the directors and chief
executive of the Company (including their spouses and children under
the age of 18) had been granted, or exercised any rights to subscribe
for shares of the Company and its associated corporation required to
be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

Report of the Directors
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TP VB 2 I8 OB OB By 2 % AT ()

B ¢
i) B

(a) It 470,000,000/ i 47 > 4l 1O PN 45 19 © %
AT By B B %118.22% » TI FICGL¥EA » T
CGLHI s Sk 2B A o Rk > 3t
HE A W1 R A L B MR CGLIT R Z
70,000,000/ Bty Z B £ 5

(b) B 574,250,000/ B 4y > Al 1O PN 4 19 ©
AT IRy B89 4019.32% » T3 ISAL¥EA » T
SALRI 8 78 40 S 2k e FE A SR &+
EHER o B > BEWE A KW ER L
W HER SALFT F 274,250,000 8 it
2 hEs s K

(©) BB 4115,228,0008 B4 > A 19 Y 4 1 © 3%
A7 I8 4 #4810 #129.98% » J3 HiCapital Season
Investments Limitedff ¥ f > WfiCapital
Season Investments LimitedHll HHAdvance
Finance Investments Limited ([ AFIL |) &%
BEA o R AFILTI AR A B R HEA - T A
ARG R =4 — 2 CEAT IO B8 4 B
p F 7 M S 4~ SAL > CGLK Y ¥ 45 [ 5
A oo BIL > WEW A R ERBYESL
e Wl B AT I U 1 2 115,228,000
r 2 RS o
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any of the directors or their respective spouses and minor children, or

o % Y B Oy o A O 2 A

RN A T I S B TR AR AT 0T S R A A A
Z LA Be R AR Z F 20 W EUA A R 2 ey R A
S i) 2 TR 25 B AT 0 % SR 5 A A ) A Ao

Jii 2 ] A T SEATAT %2 P DL B0 AT o7 At 3
INCE =483 Vi

were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to

acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ = B B SR AR 2 i) B By B A B B
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS ZHERE B IR

IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2018, the following parties (other than the directors
and chief executive of the Company, whose interests are disclosed

AR TR 7 BB B R A SR 3 36k 2 BLE T R B 2
o praisk > R _F - N\E=H=+—H > kKL
SCR R R a X AR A T KR AT B A
DU AN LB A A 7 BB AT A5 %8 DL b2 25

above) had interests of 5% or more in the issued shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

A 2y W) B B By 2 A A

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company

Number of ordinary shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

Pt 5 T DB B By 2 B H 5 By B A 4

Direct/ Approximate
personal Corporate percentage
interests Family interests of the

(held as interests  (interests of Company’s
beneficial  (interests of controlled Total total issued
owner) spouse) corporation) interests shares

Hik/ KR 2R A v B gk i 2w B

Name of substantial i A HE 23 (V2 £ (WA iy 3is ) ed
shareholders FEBORS R (E#R¥H) ZHiR) ZHiR) BT BAELK
SAL 52,907,250 ® - - 52,907,250 20.38%
CGL 30,914,000 @ - - 30,914,000 11.91%
WU Mei Yung, Quinly [ - 37,644,000 @ 53,095,177 @ 90,739,177 34.95%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

()

(i)

(iii)

(@iv)

SAL is wholly owned by Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and his spouse,
Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly. This interest is also included as a corporate
interest of Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and described in Note (i)(b) in the
above section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and/or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any
associated corporation” under “Long positions in the ordinary shares of
the Company”.

CGL is wholly owned by Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen. This interest is
also included as a corporate interest of Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and
described in Note (i)(a) in the above section headed “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and/or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any associated corporation” under “Long

positions in the ordinary shares of the Company”.

Out of the 37,644,000 shares,
approximately 2.59% of the Company’s total issued shares) are owned
by Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen. Therefore, his spouse, Ms. Wu Mei
Yung, Quinly, is deemed to have an interest therein. This interest is

6,730,000 shares (representing

also included as a personal interest of Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen in the
above section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and/
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
or any associated corporation” under “Long positions in the ordinary
shares of the Company”. The remaining 30,914,000 shares, representing
approximately 11.91% of the Company’s total issued shares, are owned
by CGL. This interest is also included as a corporate interest of Mr. Tai
Tak Fung, Stephen and described in Note (i)(a) in the above section
headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and/or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any associated
corporation” under “Long positions in the ordinary shares of the

Company”.

Out of the 53,095,177 shares, 187,927 shares (representing approximately
0.072% of the Company’s total issued shares) are beneficially owned by
FSMHL. The remaining 52,907,250 shares, representing approximately
20.38% of the Company’s total issued shares, are owned by SAL. These
interests are also included as corporate interests of Mr. Tai Tak Fung,
Stephen and described in Notes (i)(b) and (i)(c) in the above section
headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and/or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any associated
corporation” under “Long positions in the ordinary shares of the

Company”.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company (continued)

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the directors of the
Company, as at 31 March 2018, no persons (other than the directors
and chief executive of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
above section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and/
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
or any associated corporation”) had any interests and short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

There was no outstanding share option at the beginning and at the end
of the year. During the year ended 31 March 2018, no share option had
been granted under the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 28 August 2012 (the “Scheme”). Details of the Scheme are set out

in note 25 to the financial statements.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Dr. the Honourable TAI Tak Fung, Stephen, GBM, GBS, SBS,
JP, PhD (honoris causa), aged 70, has been an executive director of
the Company since May 1997. Dr. Tai is the chairman of the Group,
in charge of corporate and policy planning. He has been awarded
the Grand Bauhinia Medal, Gold Bauhinia Star and Silver Bauhinia
Star and Justice of the Peace by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. He served as a member of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(“CPPCC”) from 2003 to 2018, during which period he was a standing
committee member of the CPPCC from 2008 to 2018. He is currently
a standing committee member of the Guangdong Provincial Committee
of the CPPCC. Dr. Tai was awarded the Order of the Rising Sun, Gold
and Silver Rays by the Government of Japan in 2017 in recognition
of his contributions towards the promotion of Japanese food products
in China. He is currently a member of the Board of Trustees of Jinan
University and serves several public positions, including the president
of the Hong Kong Foodstuffs Association, the honorary president
of Friends of Hong Kong Association, the founding chairman of
the Hong Kong CPPCC (Provincial) Members Association, and the
chairman of the Hong Kong Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors.
He received a number of awards and accolades, including Asian
Chinese Leader Award, Certificate of Honor for Business Lifetime
Achievement for Producing Quality Food Products, Asian Social
Caring Leadership Award, the Worldwide Prominent Chiu Chow
Business Leader Award 2012-2013, the World Outstanding Chinese
Award, the Philanthropist Award of the Grand Charity Ceremony
2011, the 30th Food Industry Distinguished Service Award of Japan,
the Award of the Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries of
Japan for the Overseas Promotion of Japanese Food, the Outstanding
Contribution Award of the China National Food Industry, the China
Food Safety Annual Conference Award of Distinguished Management
Entrepreneur, “Honourable Citizen of Shantou City”, “Honourable
Citizen of Guangzhou City” and “Honourable Citizen of Jilin City”
in Mainland China. He is also the founder, chairman and executive
director of Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited (“FSMHL”), an
associated corporation of the Company and the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and a director of
Careful Guide Limited and Special Access Limited, both of which are
the substantial shareholders of the Company. Dr. Tai is the father of
Mr. Tai Chun Leung, vice chairman of the Group and an executive
director of the Company and Mr. Tai Chun Kit, an executive director

of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. TAI Chun Leung, aged 43, has been an executive director of
the Company since January 2018. Mr. Tai is the vice chairman of the
Group, responsible for formulating and planning of the development
direction and business diversification of the Group. Mr. Tai holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from the California
Southern University in the United States and a Bachelor of Commerce
degree from Macquarie University in Australia. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Tai had worked for an international accounting firm. He
worked for the Group between 1998 and 2012 and was an executive
director of the Company and the assistant managing director of the
Group from 2004 to 2012. Mr. Tai possesses experiences in business
development, finance, information technology, sales, marketing,
merchandising and food manufacturing. He is a son of Dr. Tai Tak
Fung, Stephen, the chairman of the Group and an executive director
of the Company and the brother of Mr. Tai Chun Kit, an executive
director of the Company.

Mr. MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis, aged 62, has been an executive
director of the Company since July 1995. Mr. Man is the managing
director of the Group, responsible for the overall management
planning and control. Mr. Man has a Master of Commerce degree
from the University of New South Wales in Australia. He is also a
member of CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has gained extensive experience in finance and
accounting from overseas multinational corporations. Mr. Man joined
the Group in 1992. He is also an executive director of FSMHL.

Mr. TAI Chun Kit, aged 35, has been an executive director of the
Company since May 2013. Mr. Tai is responsible for new businesses
planning and development of the Group. Mr. Tai holds a Bachelor
of Business Administration (Hons) degree from City University of
Hong Kong. He has extensive experience in retail management, brands
development and marketing planning. Mr. Tai joined the Group in
2012. He is also an executive director of FSMHL. Mr. Tai is also an
independent non-executive director of Niche-Tech Group Limited, the
shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tai is
a son of Dr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen, the chairman of the Group and an
executive director of the Company and the brother of Mr. Tai Chun
Leung, the vice chairman of the Group and an executive director of the
Company.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR HHEENBERABBEERN ()
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued) PATE P ()

Mr. TSE Siu Wan, aged 57, has been an executive director of the WAL > 57K > H— L4 N\ B BEARA
Company since August 1992. Mr. Tse is responsible for the food AZUTERF S AEARERZTHNEE
quality control of the Group. He has extensive experience in food B2 o PR R R A B A AR o
manufacturing and factory production management. Mr. Tse joined the e Y —JU N B I AR SR ] o A [ IR R 2% DY P 42
Group in 1980. He is also the managing director of Hong Kong Ham H 2 EME AR ZEBKBBERARARZESR
Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of FSMHL. AR o

Independent Non-executive Directors W e AT ok g

Mr. CHAN Kay Cheung, aged 71, has been an independent BEBLE B2 > 7158 > B — LS+ AR BAEARA

non-executive director of the Company since October 1995. He is the F 2B IERATEDS « WMBERTMRAT (P E) B R
vice chairman of The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited and possesses AT EIEE R » fERAT R H G2 50k A w2 o
extensive knowledge and experience in the banking industry. Mr. Chan BREE B BFBRITEGZERG L - WHEFEP
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a member CREMEEREEGRE - PRBHEBEELH
of the Committee of Overseers of Lee Woo Sing College, The REEHGZRE LB A N BB BB R A28 5% R
Chinese University of Hong Kong, a member of The China Unionpay M o BB A I8 2 b I T # KRB R A ]~ BRIT
International Advisory Group and an international senior economic WA R BRAF - KEATEERRAR X
consultant of The People’s Government of Shaanxi Province. WMEBEEAMARZEILIEPRITES > ZHEAEZ
Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director of China J Ay 353 1 Wk A2 ir B AR BT o

Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited, Chu Kong Shipping
Enterprises (Group) Company Limited, Dah Chong Hong Holdings
Limited and SOCAM Development Limited, companies whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. LAN Yee Fong, Steve John, aged 77, has been an independent BRI RA 7T A UIUNE—HRHBERA
non-executive director of the Company since January 1998. He was W Z L IERAT HE H o f) % fEEvergreen Consultants
the chairman of Evergreen Consultants Limited, president of Swire LimitedZ FJ& ~ Swire Insurance LimitedZ #8# &
Insurance Limited and chairman of Zurich Financial Services Group, Zurich Financial Services Group, Hong Kong®:Ji§ °
Hong Kong. Currently, Mr. Lan is the chairman of The Hong Kong W25l 1 B % A i B 5 0 TR M s 1 B O - B R
Tuberculosis, Chest and Heart Diseases Association, the chairman of BIEEIR BB LR - BB BSR4
the Hospital Governing Committee of Grantham Hospital, a member WREORE s U REEEEM LT
of the Hospital Governing Committees of Ruttonjee Hospital and Tang TH - HBRERNFBRERLERETREETYE
Shiu Kin Hospital, and a member of the management committee of TRE B o WEAE A A OR B 28 BB I R AR B > TR
Freni Care and Attention Home. He is a graduate of The University of ANZHEMNEERE -

Hong Kong and a fellow of The Chartered Insurance Institute. Mr. Lan
has extensive experience in the insurance industry with intensive
involvement in corporate development.
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EEEHRE

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. CHEUNG Wing Choi, aged 63, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since August 2016.
Mr. Cheung holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree and a Postgraduate
Diploma in Information Processing from University of Queensland
in Australia. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, an associate member of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants in the United Kingdom and
a Chartered Global Management Accountant. He has over 30 years
of professional and commercial experience both in Hong Kong and
Australia.

Senior Management

Mr. LEUNG Tin Chi, aged 54, is the financial controller and
company secretary of the Company, responsible for finance,
accounting and company secretarial affairs. Mr. Leung holds
a Bachelor of Business degree from Swinburne University of
Technology in Australia. He is also a member of CPA Australia and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Leung
has extensive accounting experience. He joined the Group in 1994.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 91%
of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 75%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s total number of issued shares) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, there was no transaction or arrangement
needed to be disclosed as a connected transaction in accordance with
the Listing Rules. The related party transactions as set out in note
29 to the financial statements are connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions exempted from shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the date of
this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s
financial reporting system and the risk management and internal
control systems. The audit committee comprises the independent
non-executive directors of the Company.

The summary of duties and work of the audit committee is set out in

the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event of the Group after the reporting period

are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen, GBM, GBS, SBS, JP
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2018
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiE - ERERKRSE

INTRODUCTION

The environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) report (the “ESG
Report™) is prepared in accordance with the ESG Guide set out in
Appendix 27 of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx"). The Group presents
its relevant ESG policies and information, covering the financial year
ended 31 March 2018 (“FY2017”).

MAIN OPERATIONS

During FY2017, the primary activities of the Group have consisted
of engaging in investment holding, with businesses involving frozen
meats trading in Hong Kong, and consumer goods retailing in
Mainland China.

SCOPE AND BOUNDARY OF THE ESG
REPORT

In connection with the ESG reporting process, the Group’s
Management Team and key stakeholders participated in the assessment
of ESG issues to identify those considered important and material to
business operations. To summarise the outcome of these discussions,
a “Summary of ESG Report Coverage” has been provided, which
demonstrates the Group’s current level of reporting in line with the
HKEx Reporting Guide.

The ESG reporting process will be one that continually evolves,
and the reporting aspects will be revisited and discussed by the
Management Team and key stakeholders on a regular basis to ensure
that the ESG Report reflects the Group’s standpoint on all relevant
issues year on year.

OUR ESG VISION

“As a listed company, we understand that there is a role to play in
helping to strive towards a more sustainable environment through
responsible resource consumption, promoting environmental
awareness, and giving back to the community in everyday operations.
Every step, no matter how small nor large, is progress towards a
better outlook for the future.

Our Management Team, along with the views of key stakeholders,

will continue to regularly assess the importance of the environmental,

social, and governance aspects to all facets of the business.”
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR - g RERKS EL

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION R E

“Striving to minimise our day to day impact” [ 3 ) 05 7 3 5% 2/

All effort is needed to manage resource consumption and minimise A I YR FE SRS H S BRSBTS T
everyday environmental impact, with an ultimate aim to develop a W53 ) > KR [ B 4% AR 5% i VT R 4 AL D) AR
sustainable foundation to ensure the continued growth of the Group’s HEBFEWE -

business.

The Group embeds this mentality into its main operations involving A B AE P K 43 B i g =R 3 A v N B U T R
product distribution, and so a strong emphasis is placed on the BE > BB IEH AR A EAR R AR DR
responsible sourcing of packing materials to reduce the impact of G EEHREN T -

operations on the environment.

Within the frozen meats distribution operations, cardboard cartons TR A A S E > MM R BEBREER R %
and plastic sheets are essential for the packing of products to maintain B o FOA Bl Ak R 00 R R AR JE K0 AR e R
cold temperatures to keep food fresh during transportation. The i o ZA B [ — BV P R R B VT R AR N
Group continuously endeavours to stay informed on international i PR A > B R R R S ST BR B R A
developments in increasingly sustainable packing materials for food BB B U A AT o

products and strives to select meat processing manufacturers that
adhere to environmentally- and socially-conscious policies.

Within the office and administrative operations, the Group supports TEHEA 2 RATBUE M > AAE B 32 45 W HEAT 6 40 &
and practises resource saving initiatives, such as encouraging staff to VRS - G BB B T R - B8
maintain environmentally friendly printing habits, including double- T ED T2 B BN - D) J% o T BT AR o

sided printing and copying, and reusing single-sided paper.

Waste Generation by Type (Weight) in FY2017
T — B WA B it A 4R 43 iy g (DL TR RESH)

General Office Waste
A B

12%
Cardboard Paper
1 p— — AR
51% 36%

Toner Cartridges
I ok &

1%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiE - ERERKRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION RO (5)

(continued)

The Group understands that waste management is one of Hong Kong’s 7 £ [ W 1 D A B S A s b — TR B U P BRSE
most pressing environmental challenges. Ultimately, the responsible PhER o BARTENG - B B A 5 B T A AL Y
disposal of waste generated from operations is essential in closing the S PR BR ZE PR B B 5 PR O A AR T R R B AR R A
loop, and thus, the Group has maintained long standing relationships AR P A o R R R B L R IR - RZ=F— L
with local, licensed recyclers for paper and cardboard boxes. In Vb A A A ] 0 b O T AR B A AN B A AR
FY2017, a total of 88% of all generated waste from the Group’s BEYI188% ©

operations was recycled.

The Group strives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from its A 45 [ By DA TR RE R T A A I A SR R o AR
electricity consumption. Efforts will be made to continually identify B — H RS IR W UGS W Ty DL A
potential improvements in its places of business to conserve energy, REVR > Bl > e TR R LM IR R A - &K
and for example, energy saving lighting systems have been installed in AR BB B LA O B AR T 1 o 4 d gk B A A
various facilities. The Group also encourages staff to practise energy T R 9 2 A T BRI > DL B B A I R I =
saving habits daily, such as switching off air-conditioners and lights PR L % R T R IR 25 B o

before leaving the office, as well as setting an indoor temperature of

25°C during business hours.

Quarterly Electricity Consumption (FY2017)
FREHER (ZF-LME)

250
=
= 200
2
S
"apg 150
g
Y@ 100
ha
3
m 50
0
Ql Q2 Q3 Q4
B e = S
B Frozen Meat Distribution Consumer Goods Retail
WA 43 8 S WINEN

HONG KONG FOOD INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2018



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

The Group firmly believes water is a precious resource, and currently
uses water for office functions, averaging approximately 150 m?
per month. The Group has been finding ways to save water through
employing initiatives in its office settings such as encouraging water

conservation where possible and creating employee awareness.

Overall, the average carbon emission of each unit of product from
operations is 0.26 kgCO,-e. Approximately 97% of total carbon
emissions generated by the Group’s operations are due to electricity

consumption.

RE - - E8RERRS

BB E (1)

A AR B AR R B R UR > T B K PR s
FEI& > FHEAERA503L 05K o ARG —HF
T o A8 RO 2 P AT 60 24 K R > i A
AT A DT B0 B A4 K R 3 A B R -

BRI T o A2 T A A S B Y O 2 AL
PETRE 250,26 T 38 AL A o AC 42 1 4 3 i
He A S AL R A R i B TR 4997 % 2K H R DT AE

Breakdown of Carbon Emission Sources (FY2017)
AR R DR A (—F— L WAE)

B Electricity Consumption Water Processing

FEHE K i B

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
EMPLOYEES

“Our most valuable asset”

The Group understands that employees are the backbone of any
company, and thus strives to provide opportunities for all, for both

professional and personal fulfilment in the workplace.

The Group is committed to maintaining a respectful workplace, free
from discrimination and harassment of any form, and to providing
equal opportunities for all employees in various areas, including
compensation and benefits, training, promotions, and transfers. All
employees are assessed based on their ability, performance and
contribution to the Group, irrespective of their nationalities, races,
religions, genders, ages or family status. The Group strictly complies
with relevant labour laws and regulations.

0.9%

B Company Vehicles
2\ ] L

Refrigerant Use

53 Yk

& W AT
W

I AP die B 4 Y 7

ACHE [ W) R B ST BT — B A R > R Bl
e AR B 2 B A O E SR 60K & > DU B 38 e
NEERE -

A AR T B ) A A B R AR BRSO
A A AEAT: A T XA B AR M B - T S AR A
Bl ~ 8 T R Bk 5 45 7 A 2 iR 0R B 3R P SE
W o BT AR B3R M et - RBURE AL
B B RRAE AT R A o T A A A A B SRR - R
B PR~ AR S AR DL o A P i T ST B
55 TG BB -
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RiE - ERERKRSE

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group believes that integrity is the most vital principle in the
operation of its businesses and has a no-tolerance approach to any
form of corruption. The Group is in strict compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, and require all employees to adhere to internal
policies on the prevention of corruption, bribery, and ethical
misconduct under any circumstances. Anyone found to be in breach of
the anti-corruption policies are subject to disciplinary action, including
termination of employment.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group prioritises the health and safety of every employee in
the workplace; and complies with all applicable labour standards
and regulations. Reported incidences are logged, and appropriate
preventive and corrective measures are implemented to address

potential hazards and minimise risk of future accidents.

RECOGNITION AND TRAINING

The Group believes staff development plays a fundamental role
in providing a solid foundation for business growth. Employees
are encouraged to continue development and improve relevant
professional and personal skills through various training and courses.
On-going internal and external trainings are provided to staff of
different levels to improve competence, reduce work stresses, and
increase work efficiency, as well as developing leadership and

management skillsets and capabilities.

Various forms of staff recognition are awarded to employees who
demonstrate outstanding performance, unwavering loyalty and
commitment to the Group, including the “Model Employee Award”

and “Long Service Award”.

PRODUCT SAFETY

The success of the Group’s business relies heavily on the quality
of products from its supply chain. To ensure a high standard of
safety, quality and reliability of the frozen meat products, only
reputable suppliers and producers, whose process chain and product
safety standards satisfy all regulations and are granted all relevant
product certifications prior to export, are selected. In addition, all
of the imported frozen meats are permitted by Hong Kong’s Food
and Environmental Hygiene Department, which periodically selects
samples for inspection to ensure that the products fulfil health
and hygiene requirements, and proper labelling practices, before
distribution. For consumer products sold in the Group’s retail chain,
product safety in terms of non-toxic and safe materials is ensured to
meet international and Mainland China standard requirements.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group maintains high expectations from its suppliers to conduct
operations with high integrity and in compliance with all applicable
local laws and regulations. The Group is strongly committed to
conducting business with ethical suppliers that are environmentally

and socially responsible.

COMMUNITY

The Group believes in social responsibility and giving back to the
community that surrounds its operations. The Group’s associate
company is an active contributor to the community through supporting
charitable activities and youth programs. Donations of food products
are made to organisations including Junior Police Call, schools,
Kaifong welfare associations, and those which support the elderly,

women and youth.

RE - - E8RERRS

8 M G 4 9L

A 4R [ S5 3% M A AT DA R B B > AP BB DA v
ol 5 SIS T A M T 3 R L AT SR o AR
B T BX A R o S B TS DA R BRI R AL R B
34 TG 7 A A7 SR 5 2R A o

Ft: Ik

ACSE AR 5 AL o B4R > 3 [ B A O A AL IR o
A KR T i U 2 0 S R 5 ) S s AR AL
R 365 A I A o K - RSB B C o ARG - B
B~ B A DR S i B R T AR
ALASAR A o

SUMMARY OF ESG REPORT COVERAGE ESGH % B 25 i I 1t 22

Environmental

By

Reporting Aspect Description FY2017 Report Coverage

5 e i il e SR LRGBS R

Aspect Al: Emissions

JEmAL : B

General Disclosure  Policies v

— M P i BR

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions v
data

B S AR BR AL BT TR 5 % A R B T g

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes of v
CO,-e) and where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility)

BB RURRR AL R SR AR (DA SRR R ) I
(i i) %5 BE (4 DA s ek B ~ 9 0 B
)

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and x Not applicable; the Group’s operations do not
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit generate hazardous waste.
production volume, per facility)

B RURIR AL B AR R R AR (DA & (i ) NG 5 ACHR R R A E R -

B (o DA g s B ~ g O B0 AT
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RiE - ERERKRSE

SUMMARY OF ESG REPORT COVERAGE (continued)

Environmental (continued)

ESGH# % B S i I BE 2 (47)

B (4)

Reporting Aspect Description FY2017 Report Coverage
%4 T i it "R - LWAEM AR
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)

B S AR AR TR B AL L4

KPI A1.5

] S A AR AR BEALLS

KPI A1.6

P S AR AR BEALL6

and where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
production volume, per facility)

i 8 2 0 5 i g AR (DAMEETAE) K (Jnds )
B (Cln DA i B B~ 4 JE B0 w5

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and

results achieved

3 a3 AR T B ¥ 8 B O A IR

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and
results achieved

i 2t i BHLA T e S0 B A 04 3 IR E AR
A B P R

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

A2 : R AL

General Disclosure

— M

KPI A2.1

] S A AR TR R A2,

KPI A2.2

S A AR FR HE A2 .2
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Policies

B R

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kwh in
’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility)

AR 43 0 B K B R B R (W8 ~ SRk
i) AFER (DT80 T FC e st 530 S BE (Un DA%
i LA~ R IE B )

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility)

RERE K B B B (m DA B A ~ 9 DB
9]

Partial coverage; FY2017 is the Group’s first
ESG report to include data; results achieved will
be discussed in subsequent year’s ESG reports.
BEM s " LMETIARLEE B A H
BERIESGHU, 5 B 13 8RS 7t JLAR 4R L IESG
e rh o

Partial coverage; FY2017 is the Group’s first
ESG report to include data; results achieved will
be discussed in subsequent year’s ESG reports.
BEM s " CMETIARLEE 28 H
TRIESGHU 3 BT A3 BRI I HAR 4 JE IESG
b vt o
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SUMMARY OF ESG REPORT COVERAGE (continued)

Environmental (continued)

RE - - E8RERRS

ESGH# i B il BEZE (47)

By (8
Reporting Aspect Description FY2017 Report Coverage
W e i il e SR LMAER LB R ER
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives Partial coverage; FY2017 is the Group’s first
and results achieved ESG report to include data; results achieved will
be discussed in subsequent year’s ESG reports.
B ST RCIRBE A3 it B Y 2 2 B ) R B AR R BEMY s “F - EMETIARLE TN EEH
PRINESGHUH 3 BT A3 BRI I HAR 4 JE IESG
b vt o
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in The Group does not face any issues in sourcing
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water water that is fit for purpose. FY2017 is the
efficiency initiatives and results achieved Group’s first ESG report to include data; results
achieved will be discussed in subsequent year’s
ESG reports.
B SRR RE A4 il SRIBUE 7K 95 B W] A AR AT B > DA AR T AR T SR HUE F 7K 5 IRy N 8 i 3 o P
JH 7k 38 2k T ) e P 45 2R TR LA TS AR H 8 WU ES G
3 BT BRI HARAE BE I ESG i it rh it i
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Not applicable, the Group’s operations involve
products (in tonnes), and if applicable, with redistribution of food and consumer goods
reference to per unit produced products. No products are manufactured and
packaged.
B SR BRA2.S RS B T A SR B A (DA 5E) B (i TG FH > A5 T V8 A 5 T i U

) B A B AL AG B

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

JEWTA3 ¢ BRYE R KR E U

General Disclosure

— M R

KPI A3.1

I OB AR B ASL

Policies

B 5

Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them

S B BRI R R R E RN R B RO R
U BRAT B 5 B AT Bl

fh o SR [ NI A A A N A R N o
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RiE - ERERKRSE

SUMMARY OF ESG REPORT COVERAGE (continued) ESGHUE B S MM E (4)
Social

o

Reporting Aspect Description FY2017 Report Coverage

3 T i i 3k R -LMEREE SRR
Aspect B1: Employment

JE B ¢ 1

General Disclosure  Policies v

— Mk iR B

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
JE B2 : f e R K A

General Disclosure  Policies 4

— B R B

Aspect B3: Development and Training
JEwiB3 ¢ B B Bl

General Disclosure  Policies v

— M i B

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
JEWiB4 : 57 T HE

General Disclosure  Policies 4

— 4 R B

Aspect BS: Supply Chain Management
FE i BS ¢ 3% i 5 4 PHL

General Disclosure  Policies 4

— i B

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
JE WiB6 : i FE AT

General Disclosure  Policies v

— i R B

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
JEWB7 : R 15

General Disclosure  Policies 4

— M i B

Aspect B§: Community Investment

JE WiBS ¢ W B %

General Disclosure  Policies 4

— B R B

Note: The consumer goods retailing arm of the business has ceased Mtz : EHRPHEINAEERORER —F— /)\E=
operations during the year ended 31 March 2018. These retailing H=E=1T—HIEERIERE - 2R EEKREAN
operations will no longer be reported in the next financial year. € F — {8 B T 4E B N B 3 o
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o 3-Pop 4= 9

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to AANFERET ((EFT]) RRRALEHERE —-F

present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s annual report —NEZH =+ —HIREEZER (THEH]) N 2SR
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (the “Annual Report”). HAeEERBE -
The Company’s corporate governance policies and practices are RN Z AEEIRTEHLETZBOR & HBER T
applied and implemented in the manners as stated in the below P A IR o

Corporate Governance Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES LEFRWEH

The Company and the management are committed to maintaining ARNT AN B ARG R RIF 2 R EER - FH
good corporate governance with an emphasis on the principles of PR R ZEWE - R B Z A o
transparency, accountability and independence to all shareholders. ARAFME » RIFAEEIRTHEERFRAYERER
The Company believes that good corporate governance practices are REBREREREE - KAFRZEAEERZIR
essential to a continual growth and enhancement of shareholders’ BB R Y1 7 B L A IR H B o S A [l AT R
value. The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance W AR ] OO A I e 2 5 T A A ] (TR
practices with reference to the latest development of corporate B 1) w6 27 B R (1 B R0 D) B 147 2 A
governance. Throughout the year under review, the Company has EBWRTA(TRESFAD ZAEEWE R > 3 m
applied the principles of corporate governance and complied with most VAT A G o DR Ay 0 S > M A A8 AT Y =2 AT BRSO
of the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG A4~ AA2BREN2MKERAN » FER T »

Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) with the exception of code
provisions A.4.1, A.4.2 and E.1.2 of the CG Code, details are set out

below.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company AN FZ BB FEEIRE R BT
are summarised as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS WY

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board WH G RFIEZ T - WH AR

and Management

The role of the Board is to set up strategic goals, performance HHREGZAOARGE R HE - REH B REER

objectives and operational policies; establish a framework of prudent s B A R B AR > DU PR A
and effective controls which enables risk to be assessed and managed; BB A A BT E R EEAREEES s UK
delegate authorities to the management to manage and supervise MEREBMABROF HEERES -

the business of the Group; and ensure the management monitor
performance against objectives being set.

The Company has formalised a written guideline for the division AN CRME—EHESR T > W4 N e
of responsibilities between the Board and the management. Certain ZHZEE - EHEFGOMNE THERBRYRTE
responsibilities or functions have been delegated by the Board to HANH > GFEAREEZ HWEEBIE - WITAER

the management which include the day-to-day business operation of W ~ B ETS R A Bt ) RS - DL R 2R
the Group, execution of corporate strategies, approval of business P HRE HERGOREHEAREEEE
and financial plans and budgets and preparation of annual and ERE > BIEEM GG SRE AR E X ERE) s
interim financial statements. The Board has reserved for its decision HeAE R B s B E RS  HERTEEY
matters of the Group covering the approval of significant changes in ARIEH 5 FHCE KA E KRB 2 AT 8547 2k
accounting or capital structure; approval of public announcements [\ 5 DL K% 6 b 4 4 S o 7 55 B BT o B BLBUSK

and the financial statements; approval of major acquisitions, disposals

and major capital projects; approval of material borrowings and any

issuing or buying back of equity securities; and approval of the annual

budget and setting of the dividend policy.

TE-N\EER | ERARRREERERLT



Corporate Governance Report

A\ A 2
1FE %iﬁ*ﬁﬁl

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Composition

The Board of the Company comprises 8 directors consisting of 5

executive directors and 3 independent non-executive directors.

The following chart shows the structure and membership of the Board
and Board’s Committees as at 31 March 2018:

#Ag (5
o F AL

AATZERGHIAERAM > HPs5HRBATE
Fo3H MBI PATHEE -

REZ-NF=ZA=Z+H > ERFLRERLTHY
Z IR B R R ¢

Board of Directors

WA

Executive directors

BATH#F

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman)
W ()

TAI Chun Leung (Vice Chairman)*
BB R (A ER)*

MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis (Managing Director)

SO (A A )
TAI Chun Kit

A

TSE Siu Wan

WA E

Independent non-executive directors
W IR AT #

CHAN Kay Cheung

Bt B

LAN Yee Fong, Steve John

WR

CHEUNG Wing Choi

REA

Company Secretary
2 ) B

LEUNG Tin Chi
PPN

Audit Committee

HREHA

CHAN Kay Cheung (Chairman)
BRMLE (M)

LAN Yee Fong, Steve John
WER

CHEUNG Wing Choi

RRA

Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee
FMEHSE RAZRH

LAN Yee Fong, Steve John (Chairman) TAI Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman)
WR () B ()

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis
e SCKFE

MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis CHAN Kay Cheung
SO BRAH 5

CHAN Kay Cheung LAN Yee Fong, Steve John
AL B LoE )

CHEUNG Wing Choi CHEUNG Wing Choi
REEA REEA

* Mr. Tai Chun Leung was appointed as a vice chairman of the Group and

an executive director of the Company on 1 January 2018.

Biographical information of the directors and relevant relationships

among the directors are set out in the section headed “Profiles of

Directors and Senior Management” in the Report of the Directors of

this Annual Report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EHRE(H)
Board Meeting W E®
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance e Ve T

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to discuss and AR 9 U BH o W I T A A R 2
formulate overall strategies for the Company, monitor financial g BEMBMER L RPN EEEES S UK
performance and discuss the interim and annual results, as well as HAbTERFH -

other significant matters.

The Board has convened four regular meetings during the year ended FHRENBRE_ZT)N\F=HAH=+—HILEEFHM
31 March 2018 and the attendance record of each director at the said MREMEH > FEFR LR EEGGTHRAAA
Board meetings and the annual general meeting of the Company is set BRI EREGZ B Sk T ¢

out below:

Number of meetings attended/held

HW AT R B

Regular Annual

Board Meetings General Meeting

Name of directors WHEAHW g A B R AE R &

Executive directors HAr#F

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman)** RN (L) 4/4 0/1

TAI Chun Leung (Vice Chairman) WER (HFE)
(appointed on 1 January 2018) (K- N\E—H—H

HEZAT) 2/4 0/1

MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis (Managing Director) SO (3 F AP ) 4/4 1/1

TAI Chun Kit W 4/4 1/1

TSE Siu Wan oAz 4/4 11
Independent non-executive directors o FEH AT #

CHAN Kay Cheung BRAL B 4/4 1/1

LAN Yee Fong, Steve John BET 4/4 1/1

CHEUNG Wing Choi RS 4/4 1/1

#*%  Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen was unable to attend the annual general e BREWRAR-R-LENAZ T RE HEE

meeting of the Company held on 30 August 2017 as he had another HE > R EARAR R HBITZ RHRBAEKRE -

important engagement on the same day.

Under the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the MRS Z S RIBSCE 20k » EHFEBEH
board should attend the annual general meeting. The chairman of the Ji5 BBE R A K B o W A 2 W) 3 TR T R
board of the Company, Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen was unable to ARG H B —HEEREE > RyEHEARA R
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 August E2—LENA=ZTHETZHRERERG ([ZF
2017 (“2017 AGM”) as he had another important engagement on the —LAERRFERE]) o AN HH K KR

same day. Mr. Man Wing Cheung, Ellis, the managing director of the S W AR R — LA R RAE K A o
Company, attended and took the chair of the 2017 AGM.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings 5% AR R T

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least 14 WHGEHGHRBEENTRED ARTERLEHEE
days before the meetings while reasonable notice is generally given for Ho> HMFEFGER BRI ESBNEMY - 2
other Board meetings. For committee meetings, notices are served in 75 E o ek o T AR 95 R IR T AR A R BT M S 2 )
accordance with the required notice period stated in the relevant terms PR 36 22 S 51 o

of reference.

TE-N\EER | ERARRREERERLT



Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting (continued)
Practices and Conduct of Meetings (continued)

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors or committee members at least
3 days before each Board meeting and each committee meeting
to keep the directors or committee members apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable
them to make informed decisions. All directors are encouraged to take
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, upon the
performance of their duties as and when deemed necessary. The Board
and each director have separate and independent access to the senior
management where necessary.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to directors
or committee members for their comment within a reasonable period
of time after each meeting and final version is open for directors’
inspection.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in
a matter to be considered material by the Board, the matter will be
dealt with in accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if
appropriate, an independent Board committee will be set up to deal
with the matter.

Directors’ Appointment and Re-election

The Board is empowered under the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”) from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Appointments are first considered by
the Nomination Committee and recommendations of the Nomination
Committee are then put to the Board for decision. Details in respect
of the process and criteria for the Nomination Committee to select
and recommend candidates for directorship are provided in the section
headed “Nomination Committee” in this Corporate Governance
Report.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the
directors for the time being or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest one-third but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation and re-election by
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company, such that
every director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EHRE(H)
Directors’ Appointment and Re-election (continued) W Z R KB (4)
Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive MR TR Z P AR SR A4 1 » JERAT = FHE

directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to B E AW > WHERBAT - BliE s KAG A
re-election. Currently, all independent non-executive directors of BRI PATHE E X BT W AL - MEEMR AL
the Company are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to Aol 5 PR A4 ) P A A ) P R 4 K b S AR R
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting BHAT o B > R OO BUR H H i AR AR
of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association. As AR ZAZEERWE AR CEFUE RS E -
such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to

ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less

exacting than those in the CG Code.

Under the code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, all directors FRIE A4 57 R Z S BB SCBE A4 20 > R R
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by TR [565 e 22 Bl 2 o o E EH B R M S R R K
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment. BRAG LR - BREF (ARl AHREEHZE
Every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should H)VEEALGZFRMEER K - MIEASSEREM
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. In W o AT o] 8 224 D) Al B R 22 G5k 2 o 19 48 B AT L
accordance with the Articles of Association, any director appointed ETEBRERMERE » HEMSGEHERETE - &

to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next following FER S > MR B R 22 E > i =R N\
annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election. SFL T B IR 2 ek B 2X B T i JBE 3R 4R K € AH B R R B
The Board considers that such a deviation is not material as a casual o MARREEFEARERX -

vacancy seldom appears and interval between the appointment made
to fill casual vacancy and the immediate following annual general
meeting is short.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development EH R YRR

Each newly appointed director receives a comprehensive, formal AR E H R ERER - HEB 2 - EXm
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment BB R 2 A 4R R AR AT 2 B8 R ¥
to ensure proper understanding of the operations and business YA TR > b o8 2 5 &I AE bR Rl K A B B
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities BHETZHEERES -

and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory

requirements.

All directors have complied with the code provision A.6.5 in relation EMEFCETH R EE R TS
to continuous professional development to develop and refresh A.6.516 > DL R B VA A 22 S0 i R B RE o i TR R
their knowledge and skills. From time to time during the year EEN RAFREREARAHERMEEHRACESE B

under review, relevant reading materials on corporate governance, FH B R N B B e 2 s B A B AR A\ W] SRS HL
regulatory developments and changes of accounting standards and FRRAE LB E AR ER - 1A > REBEZZE

other topics relevant to the Company’s business and director’s duties —NE=ZA=Z+—HIERE > HETEFCEZNE
and responsibilities have been given to the directors of the Company. B Mo W R B 4 TAE S BATAH B 2 B sk & I TAE
In addition, some directors have been provided with in-house training i > DL BT A A B 0 M B3R R R o

and attended seminars and workshops which are relevant to their work
and responsibilities so as to update their technical knowledge and
professional skills during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development (continued)

Participation by individual directors in continuous professional
development during the year under review is summarised below:

#Ag (5
0 2 FHEOR B (D)

P T L4 JBE P9 22 BRL Ry A S8 S 3% e 2 A D3 AN AR
A

Types of training

Name of directors WA Rl iR
Executive directors H A7 #

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman) s (L) B, C
TAI Chun Leung (Vice Chairman) WER (HEE)

(appointed on 1 January 2018) (RZF—NE—H—HEZRIE) B,C
MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis (Managing Director) ORI (EFHABE) A,B,C
TAI Chun Kit WOt A, B, C
TSE Siu Wan A E A,B,C
Independent non-executive directors B JE AT 0
CHAN Kay Cheung BRAL B A, C
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John [5F -y A, C
CHEUNG Wing Choi R A, C
A - Attending briefings/seminars/conferences/forums A - WG KRG
B - Attending in-house training sessions B — Py A I R AR
C — Reading updates on relevant topics related to corporate governance/ C — DS 2 0R B W A I o R 2 07 )

regulatory update

Chairman and Managing Director

Currently, Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and Mr. Man Wing Cheung,
Ellis hold the positions of Chairman and Managing Director
respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and
set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership for the Board and is responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with
good corporate governance practices. With the support of the
executive directors and senior management, the Managing Director
is responsible for managing the Group’s business, including
implementation of objectives, policies and major strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board. He is also in charge of the
Company’s day-to-day operation in accordance with the instructions
from the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EHRE(H)

Independent Non-executive Directors i b AT P

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board at all times met the NERE_Z-NE=ZA=Z+—HILEE » EFaR
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at LA Wy Pl 5 32 B b B A B e A RT3 a9k
least 3 independent non-executive directors, representing one-third HITESR (REFEFANEEASAZ=—) > HH P
of the Board, with at least one of them possessing appropriate THEBRY— B EMH LRSS 100) % 2) » K%3.10A
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial 6 T B SR B A A 2 B 3 A e & R SR B B
management expertise as required under Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and BERHE P2 BE o AN W] O A o IR AT
3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has received a written WA Z B AR 2 AR JE R o AR H]
annual confirmation from each independent non-executive director RL BB ERLIEATEFEEARERE YL S
in respect of his independence and the Company is of the view that LTRSS B3RS Z AR T TR X WAL AN o

all the existing independent non-executive directors are independent
under the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules up to the date of this Annual Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES HHRAY

The Board has established 3 committees, namely the Audit Committee, FEEGORVIMAZES > IBEZETES - HiWEE
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for TRV EBEG > BB CHBNZARNT I -
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board AT T R O & B A0 or RE Y A i
committees of the Company are established with specific written TRRERIE » T IR ORBRRE) - ¥ FFHTLR
terms of reference which are available to shareholders upon request. B 2 ik BE R B W R AR 2 B B B AL B Al AR B e

The terms of reference of the Board committees are also available for

viewing on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee wKEZRG

The Audit Committee was established with specific written terms TN T B O 0 DL T T L B R R A
of reference and all of its members are independent non-executive B> 2Ry EE LIERTESF > M P —ZE
directors, one of them possesses the appropriate professional T Y B3 S B EE O B S A B M
qualifications or accounting or related financial management e WHEH GBI R ARE3L B LI AT E F B
expertise. The Audit Committee currently comprises 3 independent Bl (FBEZAGLE) BRI ELRES

non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kay Cheung (Chairman Ao
of Audit Committee), Mr. Lan Yee Fong, Steve John and Mr. Cheung
Wing Choi.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and s e BB R TEIE T 7 B % B A A WA
supervise the financial reporting system and the risk management MABEEGEEHAMN P ERERE > DEEARAH
and internal control systems of the Group, to monitor the integrity of Vo 5 e 2 o e i D T % IO K 5 O kM B o B
the Company’s financial statements and review significant financial R ) A1 A S A R BRAR - DA R BB AR
reporting judgements, to maintain an appropriate relationship with the 2o

Company’s external auditor and to oversee the audit process.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee has held two meetings during the year ended 31
March 2018 to review the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discuss internal controls and financial reporting
matters including a review of the interim financial statements for
the six months ended 30 September 2017 and the annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 of the Group. The Audit
Committee has also reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31
March 2018 of the Group.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee during the year are set
out below:

wREHE ()
WHE UG (5

FEREZEARBEE - )N\F=ZHA=+HILFE
SRAT T Uk o 7 B A SR I AR AR o R D B R
B > DA Bt i A 0 B 4 e B B R > AR B
AEEPEE T CFEIA=ZTHIEATA ZH
B BEREARRE-E -EE=ZA =+ H LS
JEZ A FEA B R o TR T H 5 O B AR 4 AR
FR-NFEA=ZHILFEEZ REEL -

AEEERTHTRE Z M smT

Number of meetings attended/held

Name of Audit Committee members BHREZHANEAM I TR r T8
CHAN Kay Cheung (Chairman of Audit Committee) BRI B (F# Z A & M) 2/2
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John [y 2/2
CHEUNG Wing Choi [ ¥ 2/2
Remuneration Committee FMEHE

The Remuneration Committee was established with specific written
terms of reference and is currently constituted by 3 independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lan Yee Fong, Steve John
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee), Mr. Chan Kay Cheung and
Mr. Cheung Wing Choi and 2 executive directors, namely Mr. Tai Tak
Fung, Stephen and Mr. Man Wing Cheung, Ellis.

The Company has adopted the model where the Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure of the
Company for the remuneration of all directors and senior management
and the remuneration packages of individual directors and senior

management of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee has convened one meeting during
the year to review, inter alia, the Group’s remuneration policy and
structure; the remuneration packages of all directors and senior
management by reference to the individuals’ performance, skills and
knowledge, time commitment and responsibilities, and performance
and profitability of the Group, and the service contracts of the
directors for the year under review. Details of the remuneration of
each director of the Company are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The attendance records of the Remuneration Committee during the
year are set out below:

Corporate Governance Report

i

wREHE ()
L ESACT

ASEEHME B RH Z MR s T

Number of meeting attended/held

Name of Remuneration Committee members FMZEBEARBE AN W AT K
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John Lo i)

(Chairman of Remuneration Committee) (M Zs B & L) 1/1
TAI Tak Fung, Stephen LRy 1/1
MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis SR 1/1
CHAN Kay Cheung BRAL B 1/1
CHEUNG Wing Choi REA 1/1

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the remuneration of individual of
the senior management, not being the director of the Company, by
band is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$) 3 T 4L 0 (W)

BREZR)E=ZA=Z+—HIREE > BERAL
R EF AR AT BB Z FH AT

Number of Person

A

Nil to 1,000,000 % %1,000,000

Further particulars regarding the directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in
notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with specific written
terms of reference and currently comprises 2 executive directors,
namely Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman of Nomination
Committee) and Mr. Man Wing Cheung, Ellis, and 3 independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, Mr. Lan Yee
Fong, Steve John and Mr. Cheung Wing Choi.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
Board composition, to develop and formulate the relevant procedures
for nomination and appointment of directors, to monitor the
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors and to
assess the independence of independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee will also identify individuals suitably qualified
to become members of the Board and make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships when
there are vacancies on the Board. All appointments will be made based
on merits and against objective criteria with due regard to the Board
diversity policy of the Company.

1

M8 b i A B B 6 B T S R R AT B 2 T
SURTAERHIEB W82 — 3R Y
W PR 8 &9 o

RuEZRA

AAF ORI AT BT > 3D H AT 9
TRHEFIE > BinF 22 BT E F B (A Z
B 8T ) B SCORPE G B3 44 M 57 IF BULAT 3 o BRAR
B e - BE 5 ot R A e AR ALK -

ROEZHTZ EEME A EF T AL - e
Ll R4 RBEEFZMBART  BEEFZE
AT SR 5 ML) DA B A 8 7 AT o S S o
RAZE G GEES GBI 2oy A6 GHE
B AT el B AN e s S A PR A
LR E S LR o TR LAY
F A BN MR E > S DAR BRI T B R
Bk H Z e L as o
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) HFRBRHY(H)

Nomination Committee (continued) REZHE (F)

The Nomination Committee has convened two meetings during the WATEGRENYSH PR IRE® :

year:

1.  to nominate Mr. Tai Chun Leung as a vice chairman of the Group 1. DARB IS R4 R A M A )% RAR A A B
and an executive director of the Company; and FTEHE &

2. to review, inter alia, the Board’s structure, size and composition 2. Dhgwt GLd L RE) 3 35 e 200 - BB R A -

to ensure that it had a balance of expertise, skills and experience DI HER ¥E B o e B S0k - B 68 R 8B T A
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company FeovAf > A A ] SEH N TR A A ]
and assess the independence of the independent non-executive WL IERATE W o

directors of the Company.

The attendance records of the Nomination Committee during the year AREERLZEZEGZHBLEN T -
are set out below:

Number of meetings attended/held

Name of Nomination Committee members RHEZBANBELW BAT WMWK
TAI Tak Fung, Stephen wrEy

(Chairman of Nomination Committee) (85 ZH LN 2/2
MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis K 2/2
CHAN Kay Cheung BRAL B 2/2
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John [:5F i) 2/2
CHEUNG Wing Choi REA 2/2
Summary of the Board Diversity Policy WY B 2 e b BOR MR
The Company considers increasing diversity at the Board level ARy W) R L R R S W B 2 e b A R
as an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage. BB ITE c RAF ORMES G E L e kB
The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Policy”) ROFZEER]D - EPRAEEBARAFRERFRGRA

which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board of the Z e AL J5 8t o MIBZBUR » 4T B F W X
Company. Under the Policy, the Nomination Committee will consider AT AW B A SR NI A 2 07 T R > BHRER
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural FROAER ~ 8 - b REEFER - MK - HEK
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, 55~ BORE > A0k R AL - R4 % B e e TG
knowledge and length of service in reviewing and assessing the Board o AR R T IR e U TH o A5 A e A
composition. The Nomination Committee has assessed the composition 50 AL 2 1 o

of the Board against these aspects and has come to the conclusion that

it is a balanced board of directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) HFRBRHY(H)

Corporate Governance Functions LEEBIIR

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance HHRGAEITRETRMID.3 IHRAAEERY)
functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. fig o

During the year under review, the Board has performed the corporate REEEEER > EHRFOBITEESIREGE > B
governance functions including: (i) reviewed the Company’s corporate OBRARAFAEEIRBOR LW E > ()M R EE
governance policies and practices, (ii) reviewed and monitored HREREHAEBRANBNEI RFEAEERE > (i)

the training and continuous professional development of directors R A 2 ] A S 3 3 A S ISR R B Y 1
and senior management, (iii) reviewed the Company’s policies and Ul vyt B BRI gk 10 iz L ST ANEE

practices in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, EATHE R G sy I ([RREsp ) ) Z85F » &
(iv) reviewed the compliance of the Model Code for Securities (VBT A A T S T R AR S EERBENE
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out PPk BEHREWRED -

in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, and (v) reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES a5 5 35 5 1 o A1 1)

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code of AR 20 ) O R A0 R o S IR 2 AR oy W) R AT R SR AR
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors of the Company 5y Z A A AR (THR PP ALY o R AR | 2
(the “Code of Conduct”). Having made specific enquiry of all directors BEFEHFEEMNSE > EHMER > WEFERREZ
of the Company, the directors have confirmed that they have complied F—/EZA=ZT—HILEERN—HEF R
with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Code of i BB 2 28 G R o

Conduct throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Company has also established the Code for Securities Transaction A3 V) R R VT BB AR A W) R B 2 IR BUEAT A
by the Relevant Employees (the “Employees Code”) on no less TP 78 9738 By W BRI A R 2 ARG B BRI BEEAT
exacting terms than the Model Code for securities transactions by the WA G (TR B AR o AR R B » Rk
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information of BB -)\EEA=ZT—HIEFERN - VRIEBR R
the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Code A AR B A Z 1 D o

by the employees was noted by the Company throughout the year
ended 31 March 2018.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2018. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018, appropriate accounting principles and policies are
selected and applied consistently; judgments and estimates made are
appropriate and reasonable; and these financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

The senior management of the Company provides the Board with
such information and explanations as are necessary to enable the
Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
information and position, which are put to the Board for approval.

The Board is also responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of both annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor, Messrs. Ernst
& Young (“EY™), are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report of
this Annual Report.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

EY have been re-appointed as the Company’s external auditor by
shareholders at the 2017 annual general meeting until the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting. They are primarily responsible for
providing audit services in connection with the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, fees paid or payable to EY
amounted to approximately HK$1,180,900 (2017: HK$1,090,000)
for audit and related services and approximately HK$130,500 (2017:
HK$127,000) for other non-audit services which include the taxation
services.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL F, B 45 PR B 3 B
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibilities for evaluating O A B AN A A B R R R

and determining the nature and extent of the risks that the Company RS Z A BB B R R o 3 IR A 4R T Ok on K A
is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, FEHAERZEGEMENPEERR » DAH
and ensuring the Group has established and maintained appropriate M (B R BB A8 ) WE R AS 7 1 B B B S AR Bt 5 4R
and effective risk management and internal control systems to 5 WA B O JE 1 B ) R RE 2L B SE B A 0 IR o

provide reasonable (though not absolute) assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage (rather than eliminate) risks of
failure to achieve business objectives.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its corporate A% B 10 Bh 7 e AT B A A AR T B T R

governance roles in overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system, JBE DA T o\ G A5 L T P B i R AR A R AR VR TR -
risk management and internal control systems and considers the FIEBEW -~ B T EMLBE - Bl hd KA A F Er

adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training wl S B s R R I e TR 0 A o A D L B
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial BARMEENABEZRENAERE  EBEEY
reporting functions. Upon reviewing the findings of internal audit Ii) 2 2y (O A 45 o L % g B R A
report on risk management and internal controls, the Audit Committee BB o

reports to the Board on the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk

management and internal control systems of the Group.

The management of the Group, based upon those evaluated and A A A5 B AR R S I AT S Y R B

determined nature and extent of risks identified by the Board, is P MR A B RE - MR - AT R B R B A B
responsible for designing, maintaining, implementing and monitoring FNEEERGURBERAE TR M E R REAREE
of the risk management and internal control systems to ensure W& E KRy & I RERS o

adequate control being in place to safeguard the Group’s assets and
stakeholders’ interests.

The internal audit department of the Company’s associate undertakes A2 T T 7 A T B PR % S P o A 4 [ L B
the audit function on the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk HH N N R R B2 R R AT RS W
management and internal control systems of the Group and submits the A ) B % 22 H 1R A8 A B A B Y P A R

internal audit report on risk management to the Audit Committee on a
yearly basis.

After reviewing the relevant information of the submitted internal 2 R T 4 A2 A I R B L A P s o A AH R
audit report on risk management, the Audit Committee reported that BRE > BRZEFREROCERIRREARNERE R

there is no significant deficiency and weakness of the Group, covering —NEZH=ZFT—HILEERWENE T EERR
all material control systems, has been identified for the year ended 31 ot 7 THI O 9 T ORORS R K 9 G o

March 2018.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 March 2018, the risk EREGRE > RRE_Z-)N\HF=H=+—HILE
management and internal control systems and procedures of the Group, JE o ARG R B P R NI R AL (E
covering all material controls including financial, operational and EMAFREERE AEME - BERAGHERE) D
compliance controls and risk management functions were reasonably T J B 4 B RE 38 5 B B M R o

effective and adequate.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a A Ol E R BUR » BARAFER - AT
general guide to the Company’s directors, senior management, officers BNE -~ mRE R RS R R AR - B
and relevant employees in handling inside information, monitoring PG B 8 T el e 25l v R b AR R4S T o

information disclosure and responding to enquiries.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Tin Chi is the Company Secretary of the Company. During
the year under review, Mr. Leung undertook at least 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a General Meeting/Right to call a General Meeting

General meetings may be convened by the directors on requisition of
shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings or by such shareholder(s) who has made the requisition (as
the case may be) pursuant to Sections 566 and 568 respectively of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Companies Ordinance”). Shareholders should follow the requirements
and procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance for convening
an extraordinary general meeting.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director of the Company are available for viewing on the Company’s
website at http://www.hongkongfoodinvestment.com.hk.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings/Right to Circulate
Resolution at Annual General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, shareholders
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders;
or at least 50 shareholders (as the case may be) who have a right to
vote at the relevant annual general meeting, may request to circulate
a resolution to be moved at an annual general meeting. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in the
Companies Ordinance for circulating a resolution for annual general
meeting.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Company’s
registered office at 2905-07, 29/F., Manhattan Place, No. 23 Wang Tai
Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary.
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CREARE

COMMUNICATION WITH BB R 2 W
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy reflecting EH AR AR AN BUR DL B B R A A W] B
mostly current practices of the Company for communication with JBe SRR HR A B 2 AR R o A R BROR B AR B I AE SRR
its shareholders. Such policy aims at disseminating information in B (ELHG B B A B~ M B R ) % IR T R
relation to the Group to shareholders in a timely manner through a BERAREEZER > WahEFgE B
number of formal channels, which include interim and annual reports, T AR R R o

announcements and circulars, and is reviewed regularly by the Board

to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company maintains a website at http://www.hongkongfoodinvestment. A H] B3 S8 A Yhttp://www . hongkongfoodinvestment.
com.hk as a communication platform with shareholders and investors, comhk > fEABEBRH R EZEBBEZFE » ARANL
where information and updates on the Company’s announcements, TR EENRESERAAT Z AN - BHRR 8
business developments/operations and other information are available 2 BB K 50T B DA B H A )

for public access.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a forum for AR A W) Z B R R AR K o SR B o S BB R i T

communication between the Board and the shareholders. The chairmen B HHEHRERTETRAE T LHHAMS 1K
of the Board and Board committees actively participate in the annual WA KRG » WARE ORI o R R4 K&l
general meeting and answer questions from the shareholders. Notice H AR 2008 3 H AR R B o B AE
of the annual general meeting is sent to the shareholders at least 20 (RFEBRRAERE) EFRE NGRS AR b
clear business days before the meeting. All resolutions put forward A B 2 B DL 3% 5 0y AT > IR A R
at shareholder meetings including the annual general meeting will be T B R € &% SR 4% ) B i AR A /) B A2 BT 2 A i e

voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
after each shareholder meeting.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any A I B4R B P > A 2 T Sl S S R A A8 R A U0 4
changes to its Articles of Association. A consolidated version of the FEAT BB o A H) AL AR TR O A0 M TR A0 R 2 A OF
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on Ji A A A 2 ) B Wk AR BT 4 3l A B o

the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

TE-N\EER | ERARRREERERLT



Independent Auditor’s Report
B M BLE R

Ernst & Young ZXEHEER AT Tel T 3E: +852 2846 9888
ﬁ* 22/F, CITIC Tower EBPIRAZEIN  Fax{EE: +852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue RiERE2218 ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

To the members of BHFBERMBE TR B A A

Hong Kong Food Investment Holdings Limited 2B

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (R W it k7 19 R4 7] )

OPINION HAR

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong FAMOFFT N Bl HEZFR 136 H BB EMITE
Kong Food Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its BRARAR ([EHAF]) REMBE AR ([EEH])
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to 136, which comprise MG M BERE > WEAMBEREAE -FT—)/)\F
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018, ZEAZ+T—HMEEA MR ERREZH LT E
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated MAFAHER - FE2mRaR  GolsEER
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of MGEHSRER  URESWHEREWE - B
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the FEGHF BURME -

year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and FA B A o WA A B R DR A
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 € ([ € 5k Bl 2 6 1) A8 A 0G5 ok B 25 3 46 v JY
March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its ([HHETEREEN ) EEmhEhrm T HE
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with E R =F— \E=ZH=Z4—H 5SRO
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the FHHIEFEENGEMERIRFSHS R > I
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) 45 B8 T vl N W 60 22 s B A o

and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION SR TAIE Y0
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards FAM O A B8 A v e S A A AT R A A ST R
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities ([ TR |) EATE R o FAMAERZ S A F A&

under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s W6 0 B AT CAE AR5 2 2 F 5L 75 T 4 16 B T 3R 26 AR
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements TEREAET PR — 2 Ml - MR & 5 A
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance & R W B A A A (LRG| ) >
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants TAMVEILFY  BEE s WEEATSR PR A

(the “Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities BEEEAME - TAHEE - M POER N TR BEER
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we JE % R M B R A AR o

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.

HONG KONG FOOD INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2018



KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is

provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B M R BLED R

Il 4 it 29

TR B 2 g TR AR B R A Y SR B > R A
AR M B RN E G B A AR - BRI
e 3 A B B 5 i A e O AT 9 R R R R
SO EATREBLAY o AN A i L o 0 1 B A R
S o BRAM 368 ot A — o I AR A R A o R S Y
SNV

BA CAREIRAT T AR B2 BT A R A
AR A6 0 2 AT oy R Y AT B4 S0E S B S
HIE M B B SR o AR ML > BAM A R AR AR
A7 2o JRE 36 T A F ok B 5 A K 4 R At B i
oAt A R T o RAMBATHE R AR > B
W T 0t B S it S SE B BT MR > R A S
o B B AT AT A AR T AR

Key audit matter

B St % il e

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

6 20 JE A A i v R o

Accounting for investments in associates

T8 4 Al Z 1 B2 6 it JE

As at 31 March 2018, the Group held 29.98% of the issued shares in
Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited (“FSMHL”), an entity listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The investments in associates were
accounted for under the equity method and the accounting for the share
of profits and losses of associates and share of net assets was significant
to our audit due to their contribution to the Group’s consolidated
financial performance and consolidated financial position, respectively.
R NFEZA=Z+—H > BEESFAREEEG RS L
PR I A R (T P R ) AT A 229.98% o A I 8 2
Rl Z BOE TG 1 RONE AR OB AT B R R B o ph R AN B A E e A e
HEL A R R ARG MR R B R A S B IR D
WK > % S5 it O B AN 3 E g L

As at 31 March 2018, the investments in associates amounted to
HK$494,589,000 whilst the share of profits and losses of associates
amounted to HK$104,266,000 for the year ended.

B NEZA=Z+—H o RBE A F Z R E %5494,589,000%
TG o T A % H Lk AR R B Al B 4 ) i A B2 s 15 % 104,266,0009
IC ©

Relevant disclosures are included in note 14 to the financial statements.

B 95 B Bk SO B 5 R Mk 14 -

Our audit procedures included, among other things,
instructing the component audit team of FSMHL to
perform an audit on the relevant financial information
of FSMHL for the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. We discussed the
risk assessment and audit strategy with the component
team, reviewed their workpapers and obtained their
audit conclusion before issuance of the Group’s
audited financial statements. Also, we checked to the
calculation made by management under the equity
method of accounting for investments in associates.

T A o 2 B AR R vp 6 45 5 O 0 N 4R T < AL
FitEBEH HEEZEGMBEHREUWERZ
T T B 85 R HE AT 7 Rl o BRAM S AR B 4 7 W I R
ot i R B A B 7 SR o 7 B S 2 TARRR - &
B BRI R A R AT IR 2
&N o DEAh o BAM TR A BE R L 1B A W] 2 B
¥ BRI 4 RE 25 35 P EAT & at R B 2 HHAR o

“E-N\EER | ERARRREERERLT
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M BLE R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Pl ot % il = 0 (%0)

Key audit matter

B St % il e

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

2 S AE A i v R o

Net realisable value of inventories

R Z A2 B i

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had inventories of HK$25,005,000. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to disposal. The write-down of inventories to net
realisable value of HK$782,000 is estimated by management through
the application of judgement and use of subjective assumptions.
REF-NE=ZH=4—H > BEEZHFE225005,000%5C ° 7
S BV AL B AN B O B T A A A A R RS A o A
L 308 4 W P ) e B PR R BB B AT A R - A7 B 782,000
G % ] S B -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 16 to the financial
statements.

R B 48 2 S U B AR M3 K 6

We enquired and reviewed management’s process
for assessment of inventories’ net realisable value.
This included making enquiries with management
to understand their assessment over identifying and
valuing obsolete, damaged, slow-moving, excess and
other inventory items whose costs may not be fully
recoverable. We also selected significant inventory
items for checking to sales subsequent to year end to
validate management’s assessment.

A © 2wl K B A B g A 6 T A B A P AT
Z AR TR PP o H b B 4 v A B RE 4 I A S DA GRS 45
S5 R B A RS - AR B - A - R R At T R
AR HE 2 W ] R A 2 A B A o AR ke
S B AR AR A H AR R A% B B A A - DU B
Z f i

Recoverability of trade receivables

HEW B 53 ik Z AT W [T

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had trade receivables of
HK$21,403,000. Management performs an impairment assessment on
a regular basis with the application of significant judgement and use of
subjective assumptions.

REF-)N\E=ZA=Z1—H > HEEZ R 5% 221,403,000
WETT o A L g 90 08 R PR O W I o P 9B R P A A A

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 17 to the financial

statements.

R B 48k 5 S T B 85 e B 3 M 17 o

We evaluated the inputs and assumptions used by
management in their impairment assessment, and
management’s procedures on aged receivables by
taking into account factors such as the payment history
of debtors, subsequent settlement of the receivables
and other relevant information. We also tested the
ageing classification of receivables as of the end of the
reporting period.

T A C P A 4 B R HE AT I AE P A I PR O P A
W R AR > BB B8 AR 5 N Z IR Ak B - e
Wk D < L AR A B % L A R BB 45 IR RE AN A B
Jigh 3§ C 3 30 M WA JEL P BR B R o AP A 7 k4
J0 A 0 o Wk I B W A
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements

and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M BLE R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

B B bl o ik % T R R
HAE

FAM B R o A B AR B R S A AE
TP B T e R AT 2L i R O G R R At B 1S £ AR
> Sl H EL 645 A R A R R o 3R A TR
A s 4y m R 54051 2 3 4 B8 AR B AR i > BR
BEDAAh o A 5 45 i S8 At 08 o A AS A i
et B 9 2 1 A Al N b BB R AT T AT -

consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

i BILAR RE  KSF B AR > AELR BE DR i 4K TR W R
w4 AT A > AR T K B R RO A7 A 1 4R
REBE B o G PR T DL KR B iR 51 > AR A
TR A L O A AR VT BB Y B AR S I R
B FH 35 AR R A B 0 25 AR P AR U o R e > AU
T 14 5 TR R At T ML A EOKG o

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

AEAR 53 7 W 7 il 9 S AT 9 S OB AR T > SR A
THERIE > PRI T HIEBEEE S  BANIF

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M R BLED R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR BB il # sl b S WM B RIEN
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED BHAE (78)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the . 9 SR R A8 T B 1A A 4G

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit w0 AR I A B B TR > MEE R A
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related HIF S DA B A O HE E 1 78T AT RE &
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the B BN R RE ) B B ORSEN o
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude IR B 58 5 FAE T R AHE M » Bl 34
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw A% BT PR 6 A T R AR A M g R
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in O AH BH B 28 o R A B BB AR 2 - JI kA pE
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are EBE R IEHEAR R o FRAM Y AR A% 8
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on Rl R 45 Lk i BRAS 0 9 IR o AR > KRR
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. e E TR ES HEBEASRFFHAKLE -

However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the o FHELG M EAEN T H T RN

consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, Ko BFEWE > UAEAMBRERLGTER
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the Wt 32 5 F B IH o
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the o Bt BN E S ER TS B B R G B EL
financial information of the entities or business activities within FoR - WE ARG o DUE B A MR
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial BEEBA -RMAE BELEFFWHTm B
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and B AAT o A A TR RAE T HEL -

performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for

our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other FrHEAbFIEAS » MBI T B W@ T 5

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit S E - REH P - EREFER LS > AR RMAE
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that C s SN S S e S LR O N 7 (R

we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have TR FERETREY > HERMOFEGE
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence B8 2 i P R R S R B SR 5 N LAt A1 3 G BT
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that A6 A B 9 58 F & 5 2 A M o M B4 B A B AR A AL

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where filn =538 > DL % AR B R UL > A B A B R R

applicable, related safeguards.

“E-N\EER | ERARRREERERLT



Independent Auditor’s Report
B M BLE R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR BB il # sl b S WM B RIEN
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED BHAE (78)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we TEHFEMT B GHEBNEES > AN M & WF L IE
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit AR 5 A B R M A S e A R > IR A AR R
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and BRI IE o FRAM AE AZ S H A b il e s e I >
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our P JE P B Ao R A B 4 R 4 e TR E > B AR o

auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure FREEDLT > 0 R A BB AR AN R b i A
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 2R A BRI T AR R A A R 0 FAM
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report EAELER P EmEZENE -

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent H HL A S A% R s A R H A A B SE o

auditor’s report is Chan Sai Yu.

Ernst & Young Bk kb 3 5
Certified Public Accountants S ESoa

Hong Kong i

28 June 2018 —“F-)EAHZTNH
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Consolidated Stateme

Year ended 31 March

nt of Profit or Loss

mEEER

2018 BE-_ZE—N\F=B=+—HLEE

2018 2017
ZF— N\ —F L4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt 7t o BT T
(Restated)
(B EH)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FERBEH
REVENUE A 5 151,886 137,310
Cost of sales 8B A (151,442) (130,394)
Gross profit EF 444 6,916
Other income and gains, net HoAb e A B W 2s - HAE 5 219 1,231
Selling and distribution expenses S KA e A (3,535) (2,711)
Administrative expenses AT BUBH 32 (19,671) (20,045)
Finance costs Tl B AR 6 (3,941) (3,276)
Share of profits and losses of associates  HEfl I 2 /A &) ¥z A1l M &5 15 104,266 15,076
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM # @& % 21 2 BB
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BA O 7 77,782 (2,809)
Income tax credit Jir 49 B 41K A 10 318 300
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR RHRBEBZEN
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS %8 () 78,100 (2,509)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION EAIEEBEH
Loss for the year from a discontinued CDRIEREEEZ
operation ENNEGE 11 (11,755) (7,889)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR AEFEZBRA OEH) 66,345 (10,398)
Attributable to: B
Equity holders of the Company A\ B B g A 66,620 (10,398)
Non-controlling interests I i I HE A (275) -
66,345 (10,398)
HK cents HK cents
Al B
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE AN BRI H
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY AN 45 e B A, (G 3
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY 12
Basic and diluted B YINLE
— For profit/(loss) for the year —ENERN S (ER) 25.66 (4.01)
— For profit/(loss) from continuing - FHFHEREEEZ
operations BH, (BHE) 30.19 (0.97)

ZE-N\FER |

ERRERBREEZRARAA



mEZEBRER

Year ended 31 March 2018 §E=ZE—N\F=B=+—HIEE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2018 2017
RN\ Rk
HK$’000 HK$’000
T o BT o
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR AAEEERRA O #) 66,345 (10,398)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) M b2 wmilki: ~ (E#)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) to be reclassified AFRAEZHHEH M EHREZ
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hib 2wzt (BEH) :
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of HEAG B 2 o W) HoAh 2w M 2s S U )
associates, net of tax (BxFitz) 25,464 (18,810)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign T 36 A1 35 85 1 REE B8 25 7
operations 1,209 (1,178)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) 7 4F Ji 304 2 i e 3%~ O 47)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (B BL1%) 26,673 (19,988)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)  AC4F B8 2 i 3% Ol 48)
FOR THE YEAR 93,018 (30,386)
Attributable to: B -
Equity holders of the Company A ERE 2R A 93,293 (30,386)
Non-controlling interests I b I HE A (275) =
93,018 (30,386)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A IR R

31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

2018 2017
R A
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt 7t T o o
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Ik Gt W) ¥
Property, plant and equipment LB & ] 13 61,022 65,237
Investments in associates R s AR ZBE 14 494,589 409,324
Prepayments and deposits TEAT R E KA 4 18 819 1,504
Other non-current asset oAb 3 B A A 15 540 540
Total non-current assets BB A A 556,970 476,605
CURRENT ASSETS W)
Inventories eyt 16 25,005 30,911
Trade receivables JE W 5 MR 3k 17 21,403 17,825
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — THA} 3R IE ~ 5T 4 K H: b B8 03k I8 18 2,088 1,697
Due from associates JRE W W 2 A ) 14 297 30
Cash and bank balances B4 KBATH T 19 68,427 39,341
Total current assets i B A AR 117,220 89,804
CURRENT LIABILITIES W) £ 4
Trade and bills payables AT B 5 MR B 5 20 6,876 8,074
Other payables and accruals O A W8 Ak sk T % B it £ A 21 21,858 8,967
Due to associates JRE A5} Wit 2% A ) 14 41 344
Due to a non-controlling shareholder JE A I ¥ B e R 29(b) 282 -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AT R B Z SR AT B 22 162,561 160,683
Total current liabilities Ui B A A 191,618 178,068
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES L ) £ 15 5 (74,398) (88,264)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT A8 A DAL ) £ 45
LIABILITIES 482,572 388,341
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I ) £ 4
Accruals HE 5T £ AE 21 100 2,819
Deferred tax liabilities AR S 8 IE £ AE 23 458 776
Total non-current liabilities JE B fE A E 558 3,595
Net assets =gl 482,014 384,746
“E-)\EEHR | ERRRREERERAA




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A IR &

31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

2018 2017
—F— N\ —E—tE
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’ 000
At ik BT BT T
EQUITY B 2%
Equity attributable to equity holders of 5 B R A 2 W) B 2 PO A
the Company 1y 22

Share capital % A 24 117,095 117,095
Reserves fift 15 26 361,994 267,651
479,089 384,746
Non-controlling interests I e I8 HE 2% 2,925 -
Total equity BE 25 H 18 482,014 384,746

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen ¥
Director #HH
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MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis X &

Director #HH



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBER

Year ended 31 March 2018 #E=—ZE—N\F=B=1+—HILEE

Share of
Exchange other Non-
Share fluctuation reserves of Retained controlling Total
capital reserve associates profits Total interests equity
[ 1]
(£ ] B A
Rk it Jfb B i dul g EERER Bt
HEKS$'000 HEKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HEKS$'000 HKS$'000 HEK$000
W T T #H T #H T #H T T
(Note 26)
(Witze)
At 1 April 2016 RZF-AENA—H 117,095 (121) 2,570 276,188 415,132 - 415,132
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (10,398) (10,398) = (10,398)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: REELBATES -
Share of other comprehensive loss of BEfBE AT N2
associates, net of fax B Rt - - (18.810) - (18.810) - (18810)
Exchange differences on translation of OB EH B EH
foreign operations - (1,178) - - (1,178) - (1,178)
Total comprehensive loss for the year REEELTER - (1,178) (18.810) (10,398) (30,386) = (30,386)
Transfer to share of other reserves of BREENREAIZ
associates LAt - - (303) 303 - - -
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 RZZ-LEZAZT-HE
“E-tENA-H 117,09 (1,399)% 3457 266,093 384,746 - 384,746
Profit for the year AR - - = 66,620 66,620 (275) 66,345
Other comprehensive income for the year: B2 T -
Share of other comprehensive income of KR E AT W2 E
associates, net of tax Weds - BBtk - - 25464 - 25464 - 25464
Exchange differences on translation of OB EH B EH
foreign operations - 1,209 - - 1,209 - 1,209
Total comprehensive income for the year AV FEM 2Tl = 1,209 25,464 66,620 93,293 (275) 93,018
Contribution by non-controlling interests Fte e B = = - - - 3,200 3,200
Disposal of a property of associates HEREARZHE - - - 1,050 1,050 - 1,050
Transfer to share of other reserves of HRZRIREATZ
associates ] = - 293 (293) - - -
At31 March 2018 RZZ=NEZA=A—H 117,095 (690)* 29,214# 333,470 479,089 2925 482,014

& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$361,994,000 (2017: HK$267,651,000) in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

% S5 foft 48 1R 2 R N A A B IR L AR T A A

361,994,000% 7¢ (—~F—-L4E : 267,651,000¥ JC)

—E-N\FFEHR |
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

Year ended 31 March 2018 §E=ZE—N\F=B=+—HIEE

2018 2017
e SIS 2 —F—hE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 YT BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BEXRBMHZBERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BEBLwTE A (5 1R)
From continuing operations R RS 77,782 (2,809)
From a discontinued operation RECKILREER (11,755) (7,889)
Adjustments for: ELHE T 5 4% TEAE Y 9 A
Finance costs Rl R AR 6 3,941 3,276
Share of profits and losses of associates JRE A B 42 A ) ¥ ) A% e 4R (104,266) (15,076)
Bank interest income RATR B WA (64) (32)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME - KE K&
plant and equipment WM IE H 2 B 1E 3,267 -
Depreciation e 6,066 6,370
Write-down of inventories to net i D A7 £ 2 n) 5 B R
realisable value 7 782 -
(24,247) (16,160)
Decrease in inventories HFEzZWMA 6,005 1,190
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables HEW B 5 Rk =2 WA (B ) (3,507) 2,566
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits ~ FEAT 3K ~ &1 4 S o fth HE Ik J6
and other receivables Z WA (B 357 94)
Movement in balances with associates B S AR Z 5T (556) 446
Movement in balances with a non-controlling B2 Jf ¥ B B 3R 2 45 17 5 B
shareholder 282 -
Decrease in trade and bills payables JE A B 5 Rk B SRR 2 WA (1,267) (5,439)
Increase in other payables and accruals JHE Al A 25 T T R 5 1 AR = 484 9,742 844
Cash used in operations and net cash flows REEHBMRE SR
used in operating activities REEH B L&MW FH (13,191) (16,647)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BUERHZBERHE
ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received SR AT R S 64 32
Dividends received from an associate W B 7 4 6] L 45,515 10,947
Purchases of items of property, plant and WEAMZE ~ B e sk M H
equipment (4,818) (265)
Net cash flows from investing activities BEEH BTN FH 40,761 10,714
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETRER

Year ended 31 March 2018 BE=—F—N\F=B=+—HILFE

2018 2017
SEoNE SR
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt itk BHTI BT T

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 635 B i 3 2 Bl G A

ACTIVITIES
New bank and trust receipt loans 3G SRAT AR AR AR R AR 160,030 127,055
Repayment of bank and trust receipt loans 18 35 SR AT Bk AR R B (158,152) (114,357)
Interest paid [EERR PSS (3,941) (3,276)
Contribution from a non-controlling I e e e RV

shareholder 3,200 -
Net cash flows from financing activities il 5 3 B < Bl & U\ 1,137 9,422
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH & KB &S % H 2 8 it #

EQUIVALENTS 28,707 3,489
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the F#]Z B4 KB &% HEH

year 39,341 36,135
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net A [ R 55 B JL 2 » 4 379 (283)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT  4E&2ZB& KRB ESHEH

END OF YEAR 68,427 39,341
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH BERBEFHEH S AFZ I

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances B4 KR AT 4T 19 68,427 39,341

“E-N\EER | ERARRREERERLT



Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 8 5 B AE

31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. A K E gk

INFORMATION

Hong Kong Food Investment Holdings Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered
office of the Company was located at Four Seas eFood Centre,
No. 2 Hong Ting Road, Sai Kung, Hong Kong. Subsequent to the
end of the reporting period, on 1 June 2018, its registered office
is located at 2905-07, 29/F., Manhattan Place, No. 23 Wang Tai
Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group’s principal activities consisted of the
trading of frozen meats, seafood and vegetables, and retailing
of consumer goods and operation of a restaurant. The principal
activities of associates are investment holding, the manufacturing
and trading of snack foods, confectionery, beverages, frozen
food products, noodles, ham and ham-related products, and the
operations of restaurants.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

BB EMIEERARAR L — KN &
WAL Z A BRA T o A ] Z 5 i 3 25 8 4 7 s
VY B R AE 6 250% DY U B A R P D o Y SR
K& > R FE—)\FENH—H » ikt HshkAr
T T U HE U HE ¥ % 2R 23958 Manhattan Place
201%2905-07 °

FEN REMZ EREH R F L WAL
7 B R B 5 D Be B B /NVE B S AL R > T
B AF <z EEEB BRI - RS 8
TR RR - HOB - R KR
SRR I 7 iy > A B R

WY 0 2 7 2 R
A T R EEME A T Z AT

Percentage

Place of Issued of equity

incorporation/ ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the Company Principal
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect activities

A 2 i A

wk 1 3 CE AT L EYipig A
#iHR LY LT MR B W LERH
Capital Season Investments British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment
Limited Islands/ Hong Kong 1356 holding
o JB R T BE B
FS-Kamichiku Company Hong Kong HK$8,000,000 = 60 Restaurant
Limited 7 v 8,000,000%5 7o operation
BERE
Hung King Development Hong Kong HK$400,000 - 100  Property holding
Limited T 400,000% 70 LE ]

WRERARAHE

William Food Company Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 — Trading of frozen
Limited LR 10,000,000 7¢ meats, seafood
W & A A E and vegetables
Je i 5% B 5
B N VY 5 A T People’s Republic of HK$50,700,000 = 100 Retailing of

AR 2 A China (“PRC”)/ 50,700,000 7 consumer goods
Mainland China ZENEE

b \ R 3L

(T 1), ok b
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R 5 Y AE

31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. 2] B4k R (45)

INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued) W& A\l 2 R ()

*  Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm * o IR A U2 K B T R S BT B Ak A BR A Ak
of the Ernst & Young global network oAl 5 B o w] A%

A This subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise A KBRS W G b R A R R A AP R R
under PRC law. i1oE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in 3R BB R R A A [ A S AR M

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for FEEFERGZ B AR o #HER LI

the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the i, B 5 2 R € 3 5 R AR AR 9T R o

Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 H L o

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with A BREDHBHEEESMA T ([HFi
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which TEEAE ) B2 FEMESEEA ([F
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong W B R AR ) (AL r A &Y A R 4 e
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) H - Fwegst Bl ((FEaes®A ) k3 8)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Rl s WA A F WA R e E ) K 7 i A | {5
Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles generally 1) o A< BA B 2 75 DL RE B B A 3 4 SN DL HE e
accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies (THeRs ) B3 > BB AW HEA » I #EH
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost PUeH A B E T8 o

convention and are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had net current liabilities NR—)\FE=ZH=1—H > REFHZ R A
of HK$74,398,000. The directors believe that the Group has 185 ¥ %8 8% £974,398,000% 0T » AR A E]EHFH DA
sufficient cash flows from operations to meet its liabilities as AREBEGETR EBRSHRBRARKS LMEREDDH
and when they fall due. Therefore, the consolidated financial B o I s RS MBHFEIRBER SR
statements are prepared on a going concern basis. WAL o

Basis of consolidation AR H O

The consolidated financial statements include the financial HEMBMEAMIEARAT LW EAT (KHE
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively [(AR4EH ) #BE_Z-)NE=H=+—HIL&E
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018. A FE ) BB e o BB A W & A B B ek 4
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or PEHIA BB (IS4 ) - WAARIFA
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when DL &M > BP HUAS f2 i B

the Company:

e has power over the investee; o WHIIXEBRITMHMED ;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its o 2B G AR I Y 0 B s
involvement with the investee; and FHERTE R HRZHER 5 K

e has the ability to affect those returns through its power o MEABMHAREH SRS (BT AR
over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group AR [ BUA 8 00 48 51 4% B 3 SR B S B 2 B
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the TERER ) 62 5% 2 Il 4y o
investee).

“E-N\EER | ERARRREERERLT



Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 8 5 B AE

31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 Lo (4)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i1) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i1) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

HONG KONG FOOD INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2018

SRR H 29 (A7)

i AR 2 ) L T B B A T K 2 M %
GBS DLRER] > JUI A 5 PR Al LR A B
A 45 SRy W 5 B V)R B R R
HoL > B

(a) HBFHZFIMBZSSH AN EGHLHE

(b) Mo Al 292 R P R BRER] 5 K
(c) 7SR [ Wy B 55 0 I TS A B S o

Fhf Jg 2> ) S 2 ] 2 B 5 i A Y i S A
] > 3% — Bodrat BoR AR R o B 2 7] Z 3¢
RS FR A eI HOR A ABR > IR AR
AR B AR 2 3% S 152 A% 1k 2 W 2 ik o

AR 2 2 Al 2 VT AC 2 P4 2% AEL RS D 43 i B A A A
AFEBEA N R I b as o BB 0 5 5 B i
JBCHE 2 45 B 2 FLU o AR R A W 2 T
P i R B0 - HERE A - B R BL &R
R AR AR 2 AR

i A = B % 1 DL U B S B R O W) 2t
BTl 2 P e 2 —IH R A —IHR B I
BLSEE) - FACHR [ FORT AP AL LR A B B
i B P RE o 7 B IR 2 ) B AR R i < S )
T Sl 486 5% 25 52 I > T MR S B AR B R 22 5 o

iy A 45 V) 2k 2 S5 — D L i 2 ) = R s B > R SL
MM mEROZEME AR Z EE (BFHE) LA
& ~ Q)T Ik e B A 25 =2 JR T A B (i) 7 W 2%
Wit sk Batin A8 s REROMBREZ
AFAE ~ Q)BT PR AT AT B 2 A K (i) 18
2% o AR A PR I R > B AR R 1R o B Rl A
b 2 TR W 25 3 PR Tl o 2 A A T A S Ay R AR Rk
A 45 [ o R B & A e B R T R R 2 M
[l JEHE > 3515 L BT 20 2 B A SR B s A o



Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R 5 Y AE

31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.2 (TR BOR R BB 2 & B)
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the REFORAEEMBREPEXRFEHUTE

first time for the current year’s financial statements. BT HER] o

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative BV At R 7% BT Wikl &

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for BWAGEAE 125265 HRAEBERNEL

Unrealised Losses BIEEE

Amendments to HKFRS 12 included  Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: BB BRI ZF— W MRS iR -
in Annual Improvements to Clarification of the Scope of BENE I EE JBIE T R AR
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle HKFRSI2 HENCEHFBHER  FENiE

R 1258 2 155T

None of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had a significant TR A b 25 7 s B 25 i 4 i B s 5T 3B A B S R R

financial effect on these financial statements. Disclosure has 3 0 K B - W R RIS T 2 &

been made in note 28 to the financial statements upon adoption FTEORE e ez » DLEM B HREN HE

of amendments to HKAS 7, which require an entity to provide SR EE Rz AEET > AR A &

disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate B ERBEAEZSH » HIETT OB By

changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including B 5E28 9 B 58 o

both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 8 5 B AE

31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

il

2.3 E‘bﬁﬂlliﬁféiikékﬁZﬁiﬁﬂﬁ%#

A SR AR A B R PR A IR DL T T AR
fH R AR B 2 T AT B CUAE T 2 7 9 B 25 e ot o

financial statements. K o
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based WM B RERAENEY URGBEBHFZZZH
Payment Transactions' BT HR A
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with WM B REEAEE L — T B BERER
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts' 3} AW T RAF BN
AR FAE R B B A
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments' BBHERE RSN A TA
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative BWM BRI AFAME IR ENFE
Compensation® ('3
Amendments to HKERS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an BB HEWERAFI05 REFHAGEGLELE
and HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture* T T v 4 52 ) 08 5 Z 2 B H g iE
(Z2——4) 2B
HKEFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers' BRMBEREEANEISE FFEAN
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from BBMERERAEISKZ BFBBYHEHAENELS
Contracts with Customers' 1531 HEFGAIN 7
HKFRS 16 Leases? BB w165 A
HKEFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® BEHBERERNETR FELH
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement* BWGE RS 10 BT AT A
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint BWHTHEAEBRZ BT REFEAIRGELAZ
Ventures® RH s
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfer of Investment Property' BWGRAEA0RZIETT HAREHE
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance B (AGHERE DB SELSHRANKE
Consideration' Bfr) - AR
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments* B (EBRMBRERE  TARER A E R E
ZEE) -3
Annual improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28! ZF-WEEZFAER TR R
2014-2016 Cycle H 2 JE K B R S8 Z BT
Annual improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 ZFREREZFLER BRI
2015-2017 Cycle and HKAS 232 24 Y B I B O R 1
g T R 125 R i

adoption

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for early

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August 2016
that address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions
on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction; the classification of a share-based payment
transaction with net settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet an employee’s tax obligation
associated with the share-based payment; and accounting where
a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based
payment transaction changes its classification from cash-settled
to equity-settled. The amendments clarify that the approach used
to account for vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled
share-based payments also applies to cash-settled share-based
payments. The amendments introduce an exception so that
a share-based payment transaction with net share settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet the
employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction when certain
conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if
the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the transaction
is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of
the modification. On adoption, entities are required to apply the
amendments without restating prior periods, but retrospective
application is permitted if they elect to adopt for all three
amendments and other criteria are met. The Group will adopt
the amendments from 1 April 2018. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements
for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018.
The Group will not restate comparative information and will
recognise any transition adjustments against the opening balance
of equity at 1 April 2018. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
the Group has performed a detailed assessment of the impact of
the adoption of HKFRS 9. The expected impacts relate to the
classification and measurement and the impairment requirements
and are summarised as follow:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS
9 will have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets. Other non-current
assets that were stated at cost as at 31 March 2018 will be
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R 5 Y AE

31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

2.3 CUAE Al AH g R A 382 7 8 S 5

e (%)

AW E ST A TR ZF N\ H 81 7 H A
I o R SRS 2 BT > W R =
SEI B RO S A DL B 4 A5 DA B e A
BEAT AR AZ 2y W5 2 5 (R AT B DA A 4
BREASF 2k 4 A0 25 4 i) L 10 4 T 4 LAY DA B
FEREAT KA 5 (MHA SRS 4G B 22 085 DA
B S DL B A s R 8 A5 3k 22 5 B ik B A A A B
A o3 Y50 o B4 A 5 T B 2 A5 S R B R I Y
W wt B BT o MERT WS o AR B DR A A 5
P9 Je Ay S ASF I PP S B A 1 4 75 5t 7
T B 4 A5 T A A S AT o B RT IR S8 T — JH
HIMBLAE o AE TR FELERAE T > A BRSO 22 5
Hh R T A S R D L A A 2 2 T R
A TR A RO BERE S A R 5 > WTSE & o
iy JBEHE 5 R JBe A S A 22 5 HEAT S st B B o b
Hb o AERTEE > W R B A5 F By ST R 5
PR 0 A P 165 TR 588 B 7 DA 25 4 B RY e A
AR 5 > AR 5 BB I 2 HOB AR 2 B 2 A
TR 22 Sy HEAT @ st g BE o FEIR AN A Bl HE U
T 8 26 A A T 2 008 A J00 ] A A 0 T B S
B > ik T 088 4 R A A VR = IE T M AT A
RS W > SR o AE D HE o AR IS B
T )\FEUH — HRERWZEBETT o ZEBET
TS 7 S A 52 O 5 S A TR B o

R ESH > B F A G S
S 2 o A T SR OBR B A RRAS > i e TR
JE H B A R BRI 8 DS 7 o 7 v S
39%% Je A v 1 785 ik o 1B ) SR O BE = 4 ¥R e i Ak
A o AR 5] A S B B wt B~ A R v
BEBRZ MR o AL H ZF— )\ FEHH—
FI S BR A9 75 98 B 5 it o A R SO 5% o ACAR 15t
A EESI L ERL > M R =% — A
— P 2 0 0 4 B T A T AR U R o R
"R - NEEA=ZFHIEEE s REETH
TR A0 7 i B 5 ot 1 T SR O 9% Y R B AT wE AN
AL o A B 23 8 R it DA R A B v TR
BT

(a) 233 Kl &

AR BT > R A0 7 i B 5 Y 560
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 LA AE i R 2k 2 7 U8 T S i

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(b) Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts that are not accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to be
recorded based on an expected credit loss model either on
a twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis. The Group will
apply the simplified approach and record lifetime expected
losses that are estimated based on the present values of all
cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its trade
receivables. Furthermore, the Group will apply the general
approach and record twelve-month expected credit losses
that are estimated based on the possible default events on its
other receivables within the next twelve months.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest
in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed
by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 O B G R A 3 2 W W
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING el (49)
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15 was issued in July 2014 and establishes a new HWwMBREENBISER - -WELH
five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts A > 1 Sr — (BT 2 BEAES > ASE R 2R A
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an EP GRS o IR A BB R &SRS
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects B WAV EEERRRE TR ZEHT
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a DITERR » % A %0 IR WL A8 TR B A8 e B ) IR
customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured A REREAG 2 AR o 7 o B i P M RSB 1598
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard Z DRI R o B e R M s AR A R A R 2 O
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure oo W YERI R 5| AR IZ Mt K E BB E
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue, BIGA A e - AREAREZER - £
information about performance obligations, changes in contract Mz B &AEERAGEH &GS 585 DL &E
asset and liability account balances between periods and key S B B A T o 5% YE RIS BOIR 7 s B 5 o
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all current HIJE T A BTSRRI E - IR F— A48
revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In June 2016, NH o BV e R A € 0 1 A v S s e I
the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the ISR ZAERT - DR B A A - EFEA
implementation issues on identifying performance obligations, BLAREE N Z I 45 5| B 2 5ok 2 RE 5 R DA % 3 0%
application guidance on principal versus agent and licences of Z B R o % SR AE T I B T Bl W R B R 4R
intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are also A A v T 75 ik 7 6 ) 5 1S 5% IR B B — B E
intended to help ensure a more consistent application when T AR E P A I S ) 2 A A e R R o A
entities adopt HKFRS 15 and reduce the cost and complexity of EiE =T — )EMNH—HRRAFEL > 3
applying the standard. The Group will adopt the new standard T R 40 7 v B S IS 1595 2 A I L
from 1 April 2018 and plans to adopt the transitional provisions TRV RNz BRERE > EAH T — )\4F
in HKFRS 15 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial MY H— H A G R A2 408 Z % - thab
adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained AL EEH BN —F— )\ FENH—HZ AR
earnings at 1 April 2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply 56 1 Z A A0 R R B E o A 4R 1 FE A W0 2
the new requirements only to contracts that are not completed RNV I B A RSB 1SRRI =T — )\ 4
before 1 April 2018. The Group expects that the transitional P9 — HAE M Z B PR R K .

adjustment to be made on 1 April 2018 upon initial adoption of
HKFRS 15 will not be material.

The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will have no A AR B TE BT R 40 A 4 B R 4 T R AR 1 SRR
impact on the timing of the revenue recognition but additional BRI HARE R AL E
disclosures on the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of W EBREREZHEY - &8 - WL
revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers Al 58 A H A A B B o

will be required.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 LA AE i R 2k 2 7 U8 T S i

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases,
HKFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases - Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or related to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease
liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon
the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees
will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the
lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
all leases using the same classification principle as in HKAS
17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance leases.
HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply
the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16
from 1 April 2019. The Group is currently assessing the impact
of HKFRS 16 upon adoption and is considering whether it will
choose to take advantage of the practical expedients available
and which transition approach and reliefs will be adopted. As
disclosed in note 27(b) to the financial statements, at 31 March
2018, the Group had future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of approximately
HK$12,391,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts
included therein may need to be recognised as new right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be
needed to determine the amount of new rights of use assets and
lease liabilities to be recognised, including, but not limited to,
any amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and short term
leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new
leases entered into before the date of adoption.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 O B G R A 3 2 W W
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING el (49)
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 issued in January 2018 clarify that T — A — F A w5 e R S 28 58
the scope exclusion of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an ZAE TV A v B R O e R SR ORI i B Ky
associate or joint venture to which the equity method is applied B OFEERERENE S ARREEARZ
and does not include long-term interests that in substance form Mtk BEARFEEY LB S ARG E A
part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture, to AREFHE RN G R EN
which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore, an REZRIE) o B > A 3 BR R D) M A AT | R
entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the B BEIRE > A T A v B R E R SRR (B
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting for F6 8 s 75 i A Y FI SR O BE R B el B ) i I
such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the net e Eh e R SE285E o HAEME RIS A R B A
investment, which includes the long-term interests, only in the (/NN SR =W /N Rk /A B g X
context of recognising losses of an associate or joint venture and WAL TS OLT > 759 & 51 e H 5B 2855 73 e A it
impairment of the net investment in the associate or joint venture. BREFH (BHRIMELR) - REEFEHR _F
The Group expects to adopt the amendments on 1 April 2019 and —JUAE Y H — H SR Z S 65T » W % s
will assess its business model for such long-term interests based PR mEME R e s M ENH —H
on the facts and circumstances that exist on 1 April 2019 using FAENEEREITNEEFEEUFAEE M
the transitional requirements in the amendments. The Group also = HIRE2S o 7 45 ] 5 B Y B A0 5% A6 5T RE A
intends to apply the relief from restating comparative information G0 5 A A T [ L R o

for prior periods upon adoption of the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 40, issued in April 2017, clarify when W= — LA H A S e I SR40
an entity should transfer property, including property under WX ETEEEEERYE (BB EERERE
construction or development, into or out of investment property. Wy ) A B B R RE] o 3% s
The amendments state that a change in use occurs when the PTG > EMEFGRABHAAREDENE
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment x> BABBENABHEER  WEERRE
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere B o {HRAE P S ) SE B E T IE W EE > WA
change in management’s intentions for the use of a property does R BH N RBIE o S5 EHOR R
not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments should P e OB D % S A T AR B A R
be applied prospectively to the changes in use that occur on or WE BRI R Z BB @5 E o B
after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the PRGN B R ST H R A M 5
entity first applies the amendments. An entity should reassess the B o W (A ) M SRR > AR A %
classification of property held at the date that it first applies the H AR B D0 o i 3 3R I F R MR > Jria
amendments and, if applicable, reclassify property to reflect the IR - REHEY A —F—)FENH—HHE
conditions that exist at that date. Retrospective application is only DL A 2R 76 B R AN i S RT o BT TH
permitted if it is possible without the use of hindsight. The Group AN S A SR B 2 B R AR R AT EE R R

expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April
2018. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides guidance on
how to determine the date of the transaction when applying
HKAS 21 to the situation where an entity receives or pays
advance consideration in a foreign currency and recognises
a non-monetary asset or liability. The interpretation clarifies
that the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which
an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such
as a prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred
income) arising from the payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance of recognising the related item, the entity must
determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration. Entities may apply the interpretation on
a full retrospective basis or on a prospective basis, either from
the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first
applies the interpretation or the beginning of the prior reporting
period presented as comparative information in the financial
statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies
the interpretation. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
prospectively from 1 April 2018. The interpretation is not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses the accounting
for income taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12
(often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS
12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity
considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions
an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by
taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines taxable profits
or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and
circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively,
either fully retrospectively without the use of hindsight or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of application as an
adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial application,
without the restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 April 2019. The
interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 FEAGHBORNE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates RBEANZHE
An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term B Ar I AREE R A LRSI —
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights BADR20% R RUEHHEATMEREENZE
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. o BWRBE 152 B E B R B K8k
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial SKEIRE > 1B IR de ) s & e ) 3% UK o

and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the A 4 [ A B 4 N ] 2 R PR AN AR [ A 2 K
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share VR IRME S R B B T AE IR 2k > HI AR
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any LEEGEAMBERNEN -

impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting BB — Tl R AR AE Z AR A [\ 9 & 51 B SR AR 1
policies that may exist. T o

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other N 45 [ AL T 4% N H) 2 W18 36 4 S oA A
comprehensive income of associates is included in the W s Bl st A A 8 K i A H 2 m e
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other 5o HEAD s BN AT Z R e
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has Bp > AR E A E S RESS B B H TR AL 24
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, iy 5 ) ([ R ) o A4 [ B G 2 A w AT 2
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, R G EEZ RBBEIEFLEE > DA 7 B
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised BATFZHREERTUHE » A2 EE
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group PR O A TR R R BR A o W I
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s AR EEZ R AR AREB RS AT Z
investments in the associates, except where unrealised losses WG -

provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is included as
part of the Group’s investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint MEEZ AT HRER B AE AT NIRE -
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. B ¥ A B IR BB B S A R I IRE
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under ARG ENcERERER > MEBE RN
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant M BE IR - ZEFT A ARG DT » AL E R
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint LB AT E KRR REE A F W ILHE
venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained PERIRE s RAFEFSIERERRERE - &
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying ZHEE S AT RERKEE DS A5 AT it
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant [] 22 ) A 1 B 22 N ] B A a A HE T A B AR
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained BB N P AE S A B Ak 0 = [ Y 25 4 1R
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or EHERR o

loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 BEEEFFEHEORHEHE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 BEEEFFEHEORHEHE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued) XA PE R (5)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less A BE T RAR > TSR AR AT AT B 5 RE S
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for HBE R o R GAEAENAAR R - BME B
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in sk RS LA ) i B s IR A A e 1R > HIZE B4R
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. AR AR, - REFERBE=H=+—
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at HEATIAER R o & TR ImMAN R > KER
31 March.  For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill A 00T e A B R 8 A 2 B w4 L B E A
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, 14 B 2 A 0 1 1) 3 55 v 1 25 1) A 48 [ 4% i B
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups SRR S EEEAAN > miERAE
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the [ Rl A B R A 40 % 4 B A B B
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets AL &R o

or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of

units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount WEG GBI EEEABMNBR S EEYE T
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to (BBl & Won 2z AR oY w] We 8] 4 %A 1y e
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of EoMBl4EAY T (KB4 ERE TZHM)
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less P AY W B 4 A A 7 S HE T A > B E R SR A
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An 18 o PRI 7 2 i e s A DA 4B O R E A B AR B ] o

impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit EHEBR—HHesEEE T (KB eEr M
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation JCZ AR B —E8 40 T 5% BT i L ER A 2E B bk
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the BE WAREREEBWESR > HIEE
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the A B W i R AR i R R T N o £F
operation when determining the gain or loss of the disposal. HWENTHENmES BEEEMB & EE
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based BT B AR B R A B A B s SRS B

on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 BEEEFFEHEORHEHE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 BEEEFFEHEORHEHE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets Ik 4> b A WA

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual A BN B > B FENEE (BE
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, 4 Tl B % T R PR AM ) AR AR YA 0 - B ZH
financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount i & B Z W W Il M o B 2wl A I AR A
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the BB 4 g A WO 2 M A - DL R AR
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value 990 B AR 2 v A R A M
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, ST » BRI E B 3 R 68 7E K BOM it HoAth
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely FE A N R B UL T R A o AR E
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, UUN o ZE T 28 T JBS ) B 4 A B 2 AT
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the Il 43 % o

cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount A s 1B R A < VR T 7 A0 T e Il
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value RERERR o FYPEAN ({0 B 0 FH I e B i 25
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their SH 5 TR B A DA B B A RH B A DL B P s
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 70 T B0 B 3 B A R AR B i i 2 B o
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 901 s 4B 0 % ok 1 2 o BB T DR B S 43 S
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the FO7E A 2 ] I A 2 R P S o

statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired

asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as B R > A WA R A A R Z AT
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised WEBEHRCAGHBRTRC A - MLBA
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. B > RIZEAG ST 2 4 o Z TR Z
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. e (R RO ) o fE i 18 X RE 7 T DA AT %
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than Z AT W [ A A B A ) hR pE R I o MK
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the R A RB B R B A R AR AR B R
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, T 5 I AEL s TR T 7 DA R BT =2 MR T (10 PR AT AT
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would Prgs WEEY) o w% Bl 2 Y6 S 1R % R 3 R 2k
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had Z WM FE AR o

no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)
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the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

()
(i1)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

()

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii)the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

2.4 BEEEFFEHEORHEHE ()

B A 1
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(b)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land under finance Over the lease terms
leases

Buildings 2.5%

Leasehold improvements, 10% — 33% or over the lease

furniture and fixtures terms, whichever is shorter

Motor vehicles 10% — 20%
Computer systems 15% — 34%
Office equipment 10% — 33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 BEEEFFEHEORHEHE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial investments or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the
case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in the statement of profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other operating expenses for loans
and receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred assets is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of the
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 BEEEFFEHEORHEHE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 BEEEFFEHEORHEHE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) A A WA (5)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued) VLR )% AR B 2 < fit A (5)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated i 27 A8 T 4% 350 B A 0 s 48 4 A el A e R Dk
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event (62 %8k 2 FIE B sk kA - Bl 725 3 o 2 43¢
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously R 1R 1 m 55k A S i R DAL S 1B o AR
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting AR WM R 2R S - ZIEUR S T AR RN -

the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost LA T 2 B

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been i F BB R EUR - FRAE W ST R A T E M
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at RAL A TFAEF A Z JE b i R TR B A
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the 1 > H G 18 4 530 8 A 2 IR BELAG TR 2K
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the BEmBEZBE GRENERMEEZBITT S
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future FE B 2 L5 B SEEEZWEE
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a HAFHME o

similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not

reversed.

Financial liabilities Al AR

Initial recognition and measurement VIEZ e

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as SREAEBES B AR A T EBBESARZ &
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and B~ B A B B3R B R A R R 2
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments THZMAETHMER) -

in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, A G i 5 A5 0 25 e A 118 e o2 A B Bk B
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable 568 > R0 B B2 HE AN 22 5 A o A4E T 2 &
transaction costs. The Group’s financial liabilities include trade b I A B B R I B iR H AR A K
and bills payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due to T % et B - A IR A ) Ak - A IR 4
associates, an amount due to a non-controlling shareholder and T B SRk JE B ZE B4 A B 2 SRAT IR B o
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings BEARGEEZ R E

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings R 2B HETRAR > TR B R A B AR 1 B A
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective Ry DL AT B AT AR
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be KA DL R A T B o #5755 A E A TR
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and S A 2 AT B ) 3 G AR IR A TR AR AR R o

losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount G AR T3 2% FE W = TE A T BT G e A I
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral B B R A T R e — AR A 2 A R AR AR
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate B HHEM R TIABRBRZMERARN o
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit

or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 BEEEFFEHEORHEHE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis for stocks
of the trading segment and on the weighted average basis for
stocks of the retailing segment and includes all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion, and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to disposal.

Other non-current asset

Other non-current asset represents an unlisted club debenture
which is intended to be held for long term purposes, and is stated
at cost less any impairment loss. The club debenture is tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 BEEEFFEHEORHEHE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax Pi#4 B

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax JT 45 A5 A 355 B R B IH R GE B IE o BN E 25 IR
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised AR Z TE H A B Z B A5 B 48 25 MR Ab 2 A
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or Z G WA B L A R AR R o

directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount B3 B e 2 X LR > TR U OB B i A
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, BARE R ERZBR (R » WHEAE
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or HEEMAERFR A BB LER - 278 %
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking EBLE Jmy W Il ot 2 A PR JR 2 S B AT & o

into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all 0B FIE 50 JE i I S R O i K 1A = B I Sk
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between NHERERB P ZIREEZ A YA HEUA
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 5 s 1 14 o

for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary Jr A R SR ey 2 R o e R e 0 i S JE B

differences, except: 15 > MEDL R A UL B A

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial o HWIRMER—IEAR 5% A8 5 Wb I 5 v 3
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a BB Z 7B O R B AR A A o S i
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the 358 5y e > A8 3wt A sl e R i )
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit BRI EZIBEERIEAE s &
nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated o g [ R 45 ) 4% I Ry I 2 A 2 IR PR R BT IRE
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the P 2 RS T TR B =2 5 2R M A T R 4 I 2
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be J§ 2 ) BRI O\ R 2 B 2 R R
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences FEHH o

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary Bt A] 0% 10 =2 0 e 2 A A AR A 2 B TE

differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any G SR o AR A58 50 265 s 18, 2 55 35 o 0 2 R

unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent AEBLIE B FE o B HEFLIE G A A MR A W BE A

that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against R SR ¥t ) T AR b Y P T R R R R

which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of il FH 56 Y 41K S B R B FE B 0 s 4R, = & i R T DA

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except: TR > DL T A5 UL BR A ¢

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible . B AT R D R R 2 U R 2 R R
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of BEE s BRI — JHAL 5 % R 5 W Ik
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business RSO A E A KRR
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 1738 5 Wi AS 6 S 6 o e 1) o SRR A 165 A Bk
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and R A K&

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated o FBHIME AR S AR Z G EA
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax Z T TR W 2 A > 0 A A I DA R
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable HE H B 22 B IR 25 07 T 7R SR 2K BT 48 [l
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable T vy Ay R 4 n] ) PR R i ) 41K 1 i )
future and taxable profit will be available against which the FH BT o = R BT DL R o

temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 BEEEFFEHEORHEHE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same tax authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or the realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset;

(c) commission income, when the relevant service has been
rendered; and

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. This
subsidiary is required to contribute 14% of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model
or the Black-Scholes model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 BEEEFFEHEORHEHE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per share,
if any.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 BEEEFFEHEORHEHE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies A ¥

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, MBERETILEL (AN ZfEEE) 2
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Bl o REFNE AR FEFT AR Z RGN > W
Group determines its own functional currency and items included A A B B A 2 H A % sh Re & N
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using MsHE o AREE N EH LS E 2R 5035
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded LA 5 H ¥ & B Z 2 e £ 5 M R e 8% o DLAMHE
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their A 2 8 W E R AU R R Z R
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of BB LD EW SRR MABRYEEEAEZ
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in ZFEIABRE -

foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical PLAI s R S AR 5 > JENEEIE B > A FH ) 2B
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 52 HZERE o PAIMNEIRATFEF EZ
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items JEWMIEE - MAGFTEAFMEZH Z R
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using B o MAUNFHEFIBZIIEEHHEHEEELAZHE
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured. M T DA B DL SRR H AP ) 2 A
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item B — 30 (B A - 22 s 7 3 At 2 T Wi 4 sl 18 25
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition N T R 2 T H 555 25 F AR 43 i s A 2 v WL 2%
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., IR TP RERR) o

translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,

respectively).

The functional currencies of an overseas subsidiary and certain — AN S A B S i TS A Bl Z I RE B
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at LT AP Z 5 o N ERERI R > A EME
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these B N B R R 2 T SR B ks s B
entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange B 25 R FRAE N IMRE 35 M R 38 B W o0 o
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their He 2 T B, 25 A L b 2> T W A i R B B E O
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars Wik Bt o N E WA EFH R - B B ZIEI
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting EBZ A2 AT BAEBEI R NHEZR -

exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation W I — TR Vg A0 S 0 2 2 2 W AT A e WAL T
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets Bz E KA R 2 A P T R 8 s i
and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and A 2 R M B S DA T e o
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing

rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the M AEEMERN S  WINMBARZEHE
cash flows of an overseas subsidiary are translated into Hong B IR A A A E) H ] 2 MR 5 -
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash AN B 3 W) A4 A 2 RH B & IR B AR
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of the overseas subsidiary N 2Z JinRE S 34 T SR R T o

which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. BEE A B A wE

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of
the asset. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the asset and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2018 was
HK$61,022,000 (2017: HK$65,237,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets recognised
for losses available for offsetting against future taxable profits
at 31 March 2018 was HKS$2,840,000 (2017: HK$2,444,000).
Further details are contained in note 23 to the financial
statements.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group conducts impairment reviews of financial assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable in accordance with
the relevant accounting standards. Determining whether an asset
is impaired requires an estimation of the future cash flows and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, the
Group would be required to revise the basis of making the
allowance and its future results would be affected. As at 31
March 2018, the carrying amount of trade receivables, net of
impairment losses, was HK$21,403,000 (2017: HK$17,825,000).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for inventories

Management reviews an ageing analysis of the Group’s
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and makes
provision for obsolete items when events or change in
circumstances show that the balance of inventories may not be
realisable or are no longer suitable for sale. The Group carries
out an inventory review at the end of each reporting period
and makes provision for obsolete items. The carrying value
of inventories at 31 March 2018 was HK$25,005,000 (2017:
HK$30,911,000). Further details of which are included in note 16
to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has two reportable
operating segments for the year ended 31 March 2018 as follows:

(a) the trading segment is engaged in the trading of frozen
meats, seafood and vegetables in Hong Kong; and

(b) the “others” segment consists of restaurant operation and
investment holding.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax from
continuing operations. The adjusted profit/loss before tax from
continuing operations is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit/loss before tax from continuing operations except that
bank interest income, finance costs, share of profits and losses
of associates and corporate and other unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude investments in associates, certain
items of property, plant and equipment and corporate and other
unallocated assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities and corporate
and other unallocated liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.

3.

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R 5 Y AE

31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

& Bt A i e At (A1)

fili vt Z A4 W1 K (5
7R %

LG 45 T4 ARG AR 4 [ 17 MR
B o 6 Z 1 B 0 5 B B s A7 B A BR T RE S
& 5 BB M A VR 8 B > B BREETE H AR
5 o AS SRR A5 0 R Rt R R > R M PR
HEHELBE FER-F-NE=ZH=1+—
H =z i i {4 %25,005,0008 ¢ (% — L4 :
30,911,0008570) o #— 2 5% O B 25 it 5 Bt
516 °

BB 2y W EOR

WA B 5 > A SR AR % L 7 i % s T A 43
EBHA > MEZF - NF=ZA=+—HILA
VLT AR 28 7 il 2 KR A

(a) HEADHRAETHIEE L HAR - WK
HAEH T s R

(b) [ H-Al | 43 0 4 466 A7 o B R 3 iR -

B o o B AR AR ) 2 R A R SE A DAk
IR L K REAG A B o oy AR BUAR SR T
oy R A e 1R PG o T AT 4 A R A,
s 48 2 w5 2% AL R A A AL S 2 R AR
Hir R e 1 o AR R AR SR 2 BB
Wi )RR AR 2 R vk AR W
M Z BRBLHT R 4H — B > MEESUT AR K
A~ R AR~ AN g 4 i R s 4R DA K&
O3 ) B At R 53 TS PR S A48 O\ % S o

SEEABHRBEAFNZIRERETY
S~ WU B B R A F R S AR A L E - b
To A % A R R A AT B

3 EUARAS 475 08 2 B 0 £ AR % 4 R R AL AR
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 8 5 B AE

31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BB HHER ()
INFORMATION (continued)
Trading Others Total
w5 H Ay Mk
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

ZR-NE ZF b R -NFE ZF B ZF N ZF-LF
HK$°000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$ 000
wWTe W TT AW TIT #WTT BT AN TT

(Restated)
(=)
Segment revenue v L UN 150,590 137,310 1,296 - 151,886 137,310
Segment results Vg B3 (12,913) (5,526) (692) = (13,605) (5,526)
Reconciliation: HIE -
Bank interest income $R47H) B A 1 -
Finance costs il B AR (3,941) (3,276)
Share of profits and  FEAY B2 A &)
losses of associates i £l J% s 16 104,266 15,076
Corporate and other 2 &) J¢ il &
unallocated expenses 43 Fit B 3% (8,939) (9,083)
Profit/(loss) before tax TR KB EHZ
from continuing Aot mi ¥ )

operations (f518) 77,782 (2,809)

HONG KONG FOOD INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2018



Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R 5 Y AE

31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

4. BB IR ()

Trading Others Total
®5 Hfb A5t
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

“F-NF ZF L ZF-NE ZF-LF ZF-NF ZF-4F
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
wYTIL #ET BWTT  #WTor BT BN TT

(Restated)
(R H#HF)
Segment assets 4 ¥ = 118,798 158,792
Reconciliation: B -
Elimination of PAJ 408 R sk T
intersegment Eii%e]
receivables - (74,337)
Investments in R B AT Z
associates wa 494,589 409,324
Corporate and other /2 7] K& H Al
unallocated assets A L & 60,803 72,630
Total assets &Rl 674,190 566,409
Segment liabilities 43 £ & = 174,674 172,667
Reconciliation: HHR ¢
Elimination of PAJ 408 JRE Ao 5k T
intersegment Eii%e]
payables - (74,337)
Corporate and other /2 w] J& H il
unallocated R 43 Wil B
liabilities 17,502 83,333
Total liabilities 15 A 192,176 181,663
Other segment oAb 2y F
information: ¥ -
Write-down of WORAE & 2=
inventories to net BB EE
realisable value = 782 =
Capital expenditure® ¥ A< B 37 * - 4,788 28
Unallocated capital R4 L & A
expenditure* B X 30 237
4,818 265
Depreciation g = 776 717
Unallocated R 43 L 8
depreciation 1,984 1,984
2,760 2,701
S Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and BB WIE R E W~ WE R
equipment.

—E-N\FEER |
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31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BENWEFR ()
INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information I 3 % R
The revenue of continuing operations is solely derived from Hong BEREEBZBRAZREKAETR -
Kong.
The non-current assets of continuing operations are located in R B EH Z IR B & AR W -
Hong Kong.
Information about major customers B EEE P NE R
There was no revenue from customers individually contributing AREEBHFHEE—FF MY EEER AN
over 10% to the total revenue of the Group. 10% °

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. WA~ JEfBON Bt o
GAINS, NET
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, WMARBREBRERE SmeElEn2 8
after allowances for returns and trade discounts. An analysis A o FREREER WA - KA A KK
of revenue, other income and gains/(losses) from continuing % () 24T :

operations is as follows:

2018 2017
—E N\ —E L5
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT o Vo o T
(Restated)
(mHEH])
Revenue WA 151,886 137,310
Other income oAb B A

Bank interest income SRAT R B A 1 -
Claims received B e A 8 14
Gross rental income FA AW A 781 1,034
Sundry income R JE U A 60 3
850 1,051

Gains/(losses) B2k, OB
Foreign exchange differences, net [ 5i 2 52 » WA (631) 180
(631) 180
219 1,231
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Bt %5 ¥R 5 Y AE

31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. ME AR

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as

follows:

PR B Z ME AR Z A F

2018 2017

e SIS 2 —F—hE

HK$’000 HK$°000

YT BT T

Interest on bank and trust receipt loans SRAT K B A R R AR B 3,941 3,276

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations is

7. 5 EURE SRR 2 BB A
Olfs #1)

ACEE T R A AR SR Z IR BLRT R A, ()

arrived at after charging/(crediting): g GEA) ¢
2018 2017
R )\ L
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T I BT T
(Restated)
(HE5)
Cost of inventories sold CEFRZ A 150,660 130,394
Depreciation e 2,760 2,701
Minimum lease payments under operating leases REMENZBARMEMH & 7,834 6,540
Auditor’s remuneration A% B30 il T 4 1,181 1,090
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ 1 B A& A BH 52
remuneration (note 8)): (B EFMNE (M 7ES)) -
Wages, salaries, allowances and benefits in kind T& -~ Fi4 > dih R EYEA 11,615 11,428
Pension scheme contributions PR Nl 1 286 318
11,901 11,746
Foreign exchange differences, net [ 50,75 5 > 631 (180)
Net rental income FH A W A 3 (449) (524)
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value* WO AF & Z ) 5 B A+ 782 -
& The write-down of inventories to net realisable value is included in & WA & E T EBIFE AR A ER R 8

“Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

BHA N -
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31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a) and (b) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

8. HiYM 4

ENERE LB - B A E G
383(1)(a) (b)Y M A7) (BB HE H A2 G #
HISE2E 2 BEBUnF ¢

follows:

2018 2017
ZRB— )\ —F—t4a
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T BT oo
Fees 4 495 480

Other emoluments: LA 4
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 B REM A R 4,551 4,216
Pension scheme contributions FEYr o o |l 174 29 24
4,580 4,240
5,075 4,720

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:

(a) M FEPfTE Y
ENTATHELEATEREZHMEMT ¢

2018 2017

—E— N\ = Sl s 2

HKS$’000 HK$°000

BT T BT

CHAN Kay Cheung BRAL B 60 60
CHEUNG Wing Choi R 60 36
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John BEY 60 60
LUI Shing Ming, Brian HEW - 24
180 180

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2017: Nil).
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R 5 Y AE

31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

8. N4 ()

(continued)
(b) Executive directors (b) PATHE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
Fa o HW O BEEeNE

e REDHR Z sk M 45 B 5t
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT

2018 R\

Executive directors: HATHES

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen s 120 2,880 = 3,000
TAI Chun Leung WiER 15 335 5 355
MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis SO 60 1,336 18 1,414
TAI Chun Kit A 60 = 3 63
TSE Siu Wan A E 60 = 3 63
315 4,551 29 4,895

2017 —EB— Lk

Executive directors: PATES :

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen wEy 120 2,880 = 3,000
MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis SO 60 1,336 18 1,414
TAI Chun Kit O 60 = 63
TSE Siu Wan A E 60 = 63
300 4216 24 4,540

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2017:

Nil).

AN > 2% T 3 MEEAR SR AT 0 5 i S K I
RO RN A (LA ) -

ZE-N\FER |
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Bt %5 8 5 B AE

31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
directors (2017: two directors), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining three (2017: three) non-director, highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

Ao 565 VM e s O R

FEN o TALH R R E BEWR AL E R (CF
— L WAL ) > % R
ESCBRES o AR FEH AR =4 (% B4R
=A0) R R A R B < eI T

2018 2017

ZE N\ B L4

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T BT oo

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Hi 4~ HAE K EY R %5 1,995 1,949
Pension scheme contributions BAR 4T Z Btk 54 54
2,049 2,003

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

FETE o L g R B 4 AE T S AL B B
] 8

Number of employees

B B\ %
2018 2017
- S —E
Nil to HK$1,000,000 % %1,000,000% G 3 3

10. INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2017: Nil). No provision for Mainland
China corporate income tax has been made as the Group did not
generate any assessable profits in Mainland China during the year

10. i 138

FH P AR 5 7 AR 47 2 1 SN S A ] R 1 7 98 2
Z MERRAL wR A > PRI 0 S SR A v R A B I
i (=2 L4 ) o HRARLERAREEN
S S0 A £ Y 19 v I OK e A 2 ME R B v ) o PRI
1P ST 48R e I O e i S O A4 LA L SR (%

(2017: Nil). B4 ;) o
2018 2017
R\ el g S
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T

Deferred tax (note 23) and total tax credit for the year ¢4 &8 £ Z & L HLIE

from continuing operations (W E23) B AT 2

A BLIE K (318) (300)

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to
profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax credit at the effective tax
rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory
tax rates) to the effective tax rate, are as follows:
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31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. P 75 8L (%)
2018 2017
—E— N\ = Sl i S
HKS$’000 % HK$’000 %
BT T oo
(Restated)
(BEF)
Profit/(loss) before tax from T IR 8 SE T Z BB W
continuing operations A (ER) 77,782 (2,809)
Loss before tax from a O IR 8 SE T Z BRBLHT
discontinued operation &5 18 (11,755) (7,889)
66,027 (10,698)
Tax at applicable tax rates How B R G R Z BLIH 9,895 15.0 (2,436) 22.8
Profits and losses attributable to Tt 28 O ) JRE A ¥ A
associates &5 18 (17,204) (26.1) (2,487) 23.2
Expenses not deductible for tax AT AR BLIE I Z 52 628 1.0 759 (7.1)
Tax losses not recognised AR 2 BLIE i 6,363 9.6 3,864 (36.1)
Tax credit at the Group’s effective P A ) B BB R KA
rate Z BLIE (318) 0.5) (300) 2.8
Tax credit from continuing PR R I E B
operations at the effective rate Bl R G 2 BLIE HK (318) 0.5) (300) 2.8
Tax credit from a discontinued ORIk RS B 2 BLIH
operation il o) - - - -
The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to JE Al Bk 2 W) Z B IE 2£10,674,000% 6 (ZF
HK$10,674,000 (2017: HK$7,490,000) is included in “Share of — L4 1 7,490,000%70) B RFHHEER
profits and losses of associates” in the consolidated statement of Z [ VAL Tk A W) e A T e 48 1 A o

profit or loss.
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31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11. C A L BB EH
During the year, the Group has decided to cease its retailing AN » AREE R EKIEH 2 EHEG Z M
business operated by EMMWU T AIEHEAGMRAHE, a BARBEMNMUTAIEEEARARZREE
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, because it plans to B SEEREERNE G ER  SREER
focus its resources on its trading business. The cessation of DR AREE LIRS s ka8 AR IERE
retailing business was completed during the current year and thus B -HRNZEREEB S EAOCARLEEE
classified as a discontinued operation. With the retailing business B oo B UL FR A RS AR R E 4 EB R B R o

being classified as a discontinued operation, it is no longer
included in the note for operating segment information.

The results of retailing business for the year are presented as ARAEEREEBFRELNT ¢
below:
2018 2017
—E N —F—b
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T BT T
Revenue LN 21,247 27,769
Cost of sales &8 AR (14,387) (14,638)
Gross profit EH 6,860 13,131
Other income H At A 3,264 1,221
Expenses BH % (21,879) (22,241)
Loss before tax from the discontinued operation O 4% 1R 48 8 2B 8 2 BB T s 1R (11,755) (7,889)
Income tax credit Fi 45 B 1K A - -
Loss for the year from the discontinued operation DA IR R 8 2 AR R e 1R (11,755) (7,889)
The net cash flows incurred by retailing business are as follows: FEEEMELEZBSREFHBIWT ¢
2018 2017
—E N &L
HK$’000 HK$°000
W T T BT T
Operating activities BgEH 996 (4,280)
Investing activities BE W 63 31
Financing activities il 5 % B - 5,000
Net cash flow B&emEFa 1,059 751
HK cents HK cents
Al &AM
Loss per share: (5314 i
Basic and diluted from the discontinued operation CDARIEREREHEZ
e A e 4.53 3.04
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

12

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share from the
discontinued operation are based on:

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R 5 Y AE

31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

11. S &% k8828 38 ()

LA I 000 3 2 1 A 0 207 A
F A%

2018 2017
“F N —E -t
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the A B LR ER 2 AN
Company from the discontinued operation B RE AR T A B AN R 1B 11,755 7,889
2018 2017
—R )N\ —F—tg
Number of ordinary shares in issue during the year AR BE LB AT 4 By B H 259,586,000 259,586,000

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts
is based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, and the number of ordinary
shares of 259,586,000 (2017: 259,586,000) in issue during the
year.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share are
based on:

12. 74 2 vl 35 % B i BT A 4 AN 4 )
#A O )

I FEAR B A B 18) T3 M98 AR 48 AR 4 )
BN AEEREGEGA S (BE) REN
O 34T 3% 38 15 259,586,000% (% — L4 :
259,586,000)8% ) #H4 o

f&fﬂé%ﬂi&ﬁ&%ﬁﬂ/(!ﬁﬁ) JIRER T 51 5k e

2018 2017
—R— N\ — b4
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T T BT T
Earnings A
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders of  #H & BEEARBA  (Ei7)
the Company, used in the basic earnings/(loss) i A P 2 AR A ) 5 T R A
per share calculation: Fif & A w A () -
From continuing operations HHFREREZ 78,375 (2,509)
From a discontinued operation HKEHOKIERE ZER (11,755) (7,889)
66,620 (10,398)
Number of shares
I 4y ¥ H
2018 2017
—E N e
Shares JBe By
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue At HEREAREA Z
during the year used in the basic earnings per share EECBITEERZ
calculation T - 3 8 259,586,000

259,586,000

HRALEARE R N\ER_F-HE=H

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/(loss) per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2018 and
2017 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in issue during those years.

= H kAR B3 e B AE 8 ) 2 R AT
W3 e > PRSI S 37 o DS S AR R B 2
Gl 2 WA A, O 18 17 i % o
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31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Financial Statements

13. Yy 3 ~ W5 B it M

Leasehold
improve-
Land ments,
and furniture Motor Computer Office
buildings and fixtures vehicles systems equipment Total
LG
K5 KA
LHERT RER Tl (1 F3 W i i it
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
#H T #W T #H T #W T #W T #W T
31 March 2018 “F-MEERZET-H
At31 March 2017 and at [ April 2017:  RZZF—tHE=ZA=4—H
RZZ—LENA—H
Cost LN 95,037 2,238 6,575 427m 2,378 130,500
Accumulated depreciation EEER YT
and impairment (37,030) (16,406) (5,819 (4,035) (1,973) (65,263)
Net carrying amount R T 0 58,007 5832 756 27 405 65,037
At 1 April 2017, net of accumulated R_ZF—-LENA—H
depreciation and impairment T 25 Rk 58,007 5832 756 w 403 05,237
Additions e - 3,739 - 76 1,003 4818
Depreciation provided during the year ENEBEZE (2,046) (3,090) (618) (130) (182) (6,066)
Disposals i - (3,094) - (120) (83) (3,267)
Exchange realignment TE 5178 - 266 2 10 3 300
At 31 March 2018, net of accumulated ~ B=ZF—~/\E=ZA=1—H >
depreciation and impairment T 2 Rk 55,961 3,683 159 73 L,176 61,022
At 31 March 2018: REZF-NF=A=—H:
Cost S 95,037 7,034 6,662 3,323 2,686 114,742
Accumulated depreciation and REHATE R
impairment (39,076) (3,381) (6,503) (3,250) (1,510 (53,720)
Net carrying amount TR 0 55,961 3,653 159 73 1,176 61,022
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31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y3 ~ W B i (%)

(continued)
Leasehold
improve-
Land ments,
and furniture Motor Computer Office
buildings and fixtures vehicles systems equipment Total
HERT
BB KA
L RET REE it 1 ES LET] st
HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$000
#H T #W T e #W T #H T #W T
31 March 2017 e i e
At 1 April 2016: REF—RENHA—H :
Cost 7S 95,037 23,391 6,531 4323 2374 131,656
Accumulated depreciation and REHATE R
impairment (34,984) (13,804) (5,224) (3,943) (1,786) (59,741)
Net carrying amount TR 0 60,053 9,587 1307 380 588 71915

At 1 April 2016, net of accumulated  BREF—AEMA—H >

depreciation and impairment BB R 60,053 9,587 1,307 380 588 71915
Additions R - 99 94 15 5 265
Depreciation provided during the year  4E [} BB 2 47 % (2,046) (3,328) (624) (141) (231) (6,370)
Exchange realignment T 3. % = (526) Q1) (17 ) (573)

At 31 March 2017, net of accumulated ~ R-Z—tFEZA=1—H >

depreciation and impairment eI S YA 58,007 5,832 756 237 403 65,237
At 31 March 2017: REZ-EEZA=—1:
Cost A 95,037 22,238 6,575 4272 2,378 130,500
Accumulated depreciation and REHATE R
impairment (37,030) (16,406) (5.819) (4,035) (1,973) (65,263)
Net carrying amount IR 58,007 5,832 756 237 403 65,37
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31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

14. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

14. A BB A6 Z B HE

2018 2017

B )\ B4

HKS$°000 HK$°000

BT BT o

Share of net assets JRE A % R E 480,704 395,439
Goodwill on acquisition Wi s 2 13,885 13,885
494,589 409,324

The amounts due from/to associates included in the Group’s
current assets and liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable under normal trading terms.

Particulars of the material subsidiaries of Four Seas Mercantile

w4 I i ) S B MR T
RIS - G0 B R ik — R B S ek EOR -

ACER [ 2 2 oy ] DY B A PR ] 2 B

Holdings Limited, a material associate of the Group, are as B AT Z 3BT
follows:
Percentage
Place of  of ownership
incorporation/ interest
Particulars of registration attributable Principal
Name issued shares held and business  to the Group activities
7 45 18 JE A
ESRCIAY T R R A e
# 1 JBe By 2 ¥ A EEgME ERosk EX =37
Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited Ordinary shares Cayman Islands 29.98 Investment
VU Y 4 B A BR A gl BH 2R holding
BB
Fancy Talent Limited* Ordinary shares Hong Kong 29.98 Marketing of
ZEWEA MR A A W K s snack foods
AN Z T G HE
Fancy Talent Ecommerce Company Ordinary shares Hong Kong 29.98 Ecommerce
Limited* o B B retailing
REVEEFHBEARA A of confectionery
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14. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(continued)

Particulars of the material subsidiaries of Four Seas Mercantile
Holdings Limited, a material associate of the Group, are as

follows: (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
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14. 7 W6k 8 A vl L B ¥ (87)

S [ 2 0 ) D O 4
P IS 2 /] Z RE BT ¢ (A7)

AMAFZ ER

Percentage
Place of  of ownership
incorporation/ interest
Particulars of registration attributable Principal
Name issued shares held and business  to the Group activities
7 45 1 M A
SR NRY Z T i3 ) A B A7 e
%1 JBe Ay Z W EERWMYE MR EX =37
Four Seas Mercantile Limited (i) Ordinary shares Hong Kong 29.98 Trading in
VO & 5 A BRA A (ii) Non-voting s snack foods,
deferred shares confectionery
() ¥ 8 B and beverages
(i) JHE 45 5% B A HiE AR RER K
Jie 4y i Z | 5
Four Seas Foods (Shantou) Co., Ltd.* Paid-up capital of PRC/ 29.98 Trading in
Y o £ (I EE) AR ] HK$96,000,000 Mainland China confectionery and
O 42 AR Ll PN food products
96,000,000% 7C bR B b
ZH5
Four Seas (Suzhou) Food Co., Ltd.* Paid-up capital of PRC/ 29.98  Manufacturing of
PO (R ) A A R 2 ] US$20,800,000 Mainland China beverages
(2017: Hfr i e Ok e K B
US$19,700,000)
O 4 e A
20,800,0003 &
—F L
19,700,000 It )
Guang Dong Fourseas Frozen Food Paid-up capital of PRC/ 29.98  Trading in frozen
Products Co., Ltd.* RMB83,300,000 Mainland China food products and
JEE S 09 9 4 R A PR A T+ (2017: e il N 7 snack foods
RMB71,300,000) & B
C AR B A MNEZHE 5
A R 83,300,0007C
(ZZ— b4
A R #71,300,0007C)
Hong Kong Biscuit (International) Ordinary shares Hong Kong 29.79 Investment holding
Limited* W 8 Bt T B

AU B L (1 B ) A B2 7]

ZE-N\FER |
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14. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(continued)

Particulars of the material subsidiaries of Four Seas Mercantile
Holdings Limited, a material associate of the Group, are as

follows: (continued)

14. 7 W6k 8 A vl L B ¥ (87)

S [ 2 0 ) D O 4
P IS 2 /] Z RE BT ¢ (A7)

AMAFZ ER

Percentage

Place of  of ownership

incorporation/ interest
Particulars of registration attributable Principal
Name issued shares held and business  to the Group activities

7 45 1 M A

SR NRY Z T i3 ) A B A7 e
%1 JBe Ay Z W EERWMYE MR EX =37
Hong Kong Ham Holdings Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 29.98 Manufacturing and
T v K BB L IR A PR ) o B R packaging of ham
and ham-related
products
B B A K R K
A7 B BB S
J. P. Inglis Company Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 29.98 Trading in food
B LHEGERAH W i ERE materials
B ERE 5
Kung Tak Lam Shanghai Vegetarian Ordinary shares Hong Kong 29.69 Restaurant
Cuisine Limited W m W operations
DER EBRRARAHE BERE
Li Fook (Qingdao) Foods Co., Ltd.* Paid-up capital of PRC/ 29.98  Manufacturing of
Al (75 5) & A R4 A US$5,220,000 Mainland China noodles
CARBA kR fil %

5,220,0003 7t

Murray Catering Company Limited* Ordinary shares Hong Kong 20.99  Provision of lunch
S AR IR B A A W]+ W B box and tuck shop
services
AR K
AN e
New Kondo Trading Company Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 29.98 Trading in Japanese
ERESERAF W B food materials
H A £
JEORH R 5
Restaurant Shiki Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 29.98 Restaurant
a8 B R operations
BELR
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14. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(continued)

Particulars of the material subsidiaries of Four Seas Mercantile
Holdings Limited, a material associate of the Group, are as

follows: (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
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14. 7 W6k 8 A vl L B ¥ (87)

S [ 2 0 ) D O 4
P IS 2 /] Z RE BT ¢ (A7)

AMAFZ ER

Percentage
Place of  of ownership
incorporation/ interest
Particulars of registration attributable Principal
Name issued shares held and business  to the Group activities
7 45 1 M A
SR NAY Z T i3 ) A B A7 e
£ JBe By 2 ¥ i EERWMYE MRS EX =3
TR E 5 A A ]+ Paid-up capital of PRC/ 29.98 Trading in
RMB500,000 Mainland China confectionery and
O 42 AR Ll PN food products
A B 500,0007€ B SR B £ b
ZH5
Four Seas (Guangzhou) Food Import and Paid-up capital of PRC/ 29.98 Trading in
Export Trading Company Limited* RMB23,000,000 Mainland China confectionery and
PN (RE ) & S HE B OB B AR L PN food products
B 5 A A ]+ A B #23,000,00078 bR B £ b
ZH 5
TRESE Y R A BR A B Paid-up capital of PRC/ 29.98 Manufacturing and
HK$37,000,000 Mainland China packaging of ham
3R B AR LT PN and ham-related
37,000,0003 Ji products
B T 105 R R K
A B B
B 0] T PR T KA BR A Paid-up capital of PRC/ 29.69 Restaurant
RMB73,959,210 Mainland China operations
CARBA B kb REPELE

A R73,959,2107C

& Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm

of the Ernst & Young global network

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other associated would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. All
associates were indirectly held by the Company.

o IR A K T Rk 2 R A A%
Ho A il 5 2 7 7 %

3 BB o A 5 T A R A S
7 - R A Z W A ] o SRR A R S
FU A Vo 0N W) o R R AR A OU IR o PR B
" AR T &R o

ZE-N\FER |

ERRERBREEZRARAA
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14. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 14. 7 W6k 8 A vl L B ¥ (87)
(continued)
Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited, which is considered WA s A 45 1) 22 TR T2 o W) DU N 48 A BR A
a material associate of the Group, is a strategic partner of the AR EREER  TIAREE R B AR Z R
Group engaged in investment holding and is accounted for using W& £k £ o

the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial 250U AR A R A R Z B R R
information of Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited, adjusted (ZATA] B 5T R 25 B 2 0B ) Rt i A B 5
for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the 2 R T E 2 BHER -

carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:

2018 2017
—E N\ —R—b
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Current assets A 1,911,531 1,907,434
Non-current assets IR 902,811 856,328
Current liabilities S IRE R (1,148,368) (1,315,517)
Non-current liabilities I 9 By £ 45 (27,841) (100,512)
Net assets R 1,638,133 1,347,733
Less: Net assets attributable to non-controlling interests I8 : JF ¥4 it HE #5 FE A 2 & & - # (35,697) (29,633)
Net assets attributable to equity T8 A W R 25 B A A B 2
holders of the associate e 1,602,436 1,318,100
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the associate: — S2AS 45 [H] M g 4 A ®] 2 HEZE 2
HE -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AR [ A REZ L 29.9% 29.9%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate, AR A s AR 2 E
excluding goodwill Al > AR 480,704 395,439
Goodwill on acquisition WAL i IR 2 T 13,885 13,885
Carrying amount of the investment B Z IR AE 494,589 409,324
Revenue WA 3,002,437 2,948,289
Profit for the year AR JE 1 A 351,741 53,399
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year i RN & <Ei=)) 87,897 (64,229)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year EEEWR (EE) A 439,638 (10,830)
Dividend received from the associate R A Z BB 45,515 10,947
Fair value of the Group’s investment AR E R E Z AT 374,491 443,628
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31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

15. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSET 15. oAb Ik 5 ) %5 A
The club debenture represents an entrance fee paid for the use of GHESREREHEREEZAGE > I
club facilities and is held on a long term basis. WMEMEREERER -

16. INVENTORIES 16. # &

2018 2017
“F-AE SRR
HK$’000 HK$°000

W T T 0T T

Finished goods 2 B 25,005 30,911
17. TRADE RECEIVABLES 17. KW 50 ek

2018 2017

e SIS 2 e St

HK$°000 HKS$’000

T T BT T

Trade receivables JE W & 5 Bk 21,403 17,825

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on AREFBREFZEGRPUAERRE  WHE

credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is F— R =R R o fE S — ==

normally required. The credit period is generally one to three H oo GH%E A EREH ER o AL ) Kk

months. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group - 1) D G R IR 2 I WOk T o o I i R

seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables B e 28 B I o R ARG HEL G AR A &

to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly ik o BN Rk o DL OAREE [ X IR S R

by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the KEP % 2 e AL % P A B > R b 4 R AE

fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number B R LR o AAS 4R [ N S S A AR A AR AT

of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration FRA & SIS R T o TEACE BRI R

of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other B e
credit enhancements over these balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.
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17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the

17. REWC B 5 We sk (7))
TR 0 > AR D B8 0T S0 R

reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of impairment W ZERZIEBS T
provisions, is as follows:

2018 2017
ZF— N\ e e S
HK$’000 HK$’000
T o BT T
Within 1 month MiE A A 8,193 5,666
1 to 2 months 12210 H 5,008 7,341
Over 2 months 28 A PL L 8,202 4,818
21,403 17,825

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

AR T AR WA 2 B W B 5 MRk 2 B B 2 A o T

2018 2017

—E— N\ &L

HK$’000 HKS$’000

T T BT T

Neither past due nor impaired 7 06 28 4 s vl 1 15,264 15,485
Less than 1 month past due 7 1 A i 16 H 1,479 1,624
1 to 2 months past due A1 Z2ME A 1,218 716
Over 2 months past due 2fE A DAk 3,442 -
21,403 17,825

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.
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18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

18. TUAF KB ~ W <8 B 30 fib M ek

2018 2017

e SIS 2 b

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT T BT

Prepayments THAT 3R IE 1,079 630
Deposits and other receivables AR E N & e 1,828 2,571
2,907 3,201
Less: Portion classified as non-current W 43 JE 2 FE U B B Ay (819) (1,504)
2,088 1,697

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

19. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$7,005,000 (2017: HK$4,845,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

Sl A B AR o bl s R AR 2
T S A 7 488 T 90 3R A T ik 2 M WAL O

Bl&: B AT B A7

R RIR » AREEPNRE (T AR 54
Z B4 BARAT 45 1% 547,005,000 08 (= F—+&
4 1 4,845,000 70) o AR H H b
B o AR B b R e A R 4 BELAGE 451 A 4 E
B T T A T4 B 28 » AS 45 ] 48 v 25 20 o 2 )
AT AP E SR 2 SRAT I N RS S s Mot
JEgi A

19

SRAT B S 1A H BT AR R A B DU ) ) 3 R B
FB. o SRAT K5AR TG A7 T 0 391 I 8 788 464 4 i
A RIFE BT
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20. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 20. KA B 50 ek B 55 9%
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of RECEHR > B EE AN ZEMNE SRR &
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: FRZIRBRSMWT -
2018 2017
e SIS 2 Sl i S
HK$’000 HK$’000

W T T 0T T

Within 1 month i A P 6,876 7,650
1 to 2 months 12208 A - 424
6,876 8,074

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally JE A B8 5 W sk A 4 B B — M #230F 60 H 1 P 45

settled on terms of 30 to 60 days. i o
21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21. 30 fib M Aok sk 9 e Mt £

2018 2017

e S e
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T T

Other payables L Al IR A 35 T 12,700 8,579
Accruals JE 5t £ A 9,258 3,207
21,958 11,786
Less: Portion classified as non-current oA P U/ (100) (2,819)
21,858 8,967

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term HALREAT K IETIE - FEHFH A=A -

of three months.
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22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK 22. A BT M B 2 ST Bk
BORROWINGS
2018 2017
B N\AE —F L
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate  Maturity HK$°000 rate Maturity HKS$’000

TR R WA #BEFTIX  HBENXR 2MA  EWETIL

Current W
Short term loan JHE G 410 0L 00 B K 2.61% Within 130,000 2.40% Within 130,000
— unsecured 12 months 12 months
or on or on
demand demand
126 3 W 12M8 A A
Bk Bk BRAREIR
Trust receipt loans 90 HE T 45 FE R bR 2.51% Within 32,561 2.45% Within 30,683
— unsecured K 12 months 12 months
12 3 W 128 A A
162,561 160,683
All short term loans and trust receipt loans are denominated in FIt A 300 B R % A W WO B 5k DAV T R
Hong Kong dollar and bear interest at floating interest rates. VB R 28 5 R B, o BB i SR A AR B — ek
Ignoring the effect of any standard repayment on demand clause K2R B BABAR B Z R ERZE
and based on the maturity terms of the above interest-bearing WHMS » AR —FEREE-

bank borrowings, they are repayable within one year.
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23. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as
follows:

23. ¥E %t B JH
FAAENIEERIE A BT

HE % BE B £1 4

Deferred tax liabilities

Losses available
for offsetting

Accelerated tax against future

depreciation taxable profits Total
w JT DA LM AR
o 28 B ¥ e o e ik
Ui 85 2 M 41 At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT
At 1 April 2016 W= NFEMNHA—H (3,064) 1,988 (1,076)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) AN4EFERHHZE RN A
to the statement of profit or (I BR) Z 78 1 il JH
loss during the year (note 10) (Ktit10) (156) 456 300
At 31 March 2017 and woF—-tL#=HA=+—H
1 April 2017 K_F—LHFENH—H (3,220) 2,444 (776)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) —AN4E R HZE RN A
to the statement of profit or (I BR) Z 78 1 A JH
loss during the year (note 10) (Htit10) (78) 396 318
At 31 March 2018 Ro-F-NFE=A=+—H (3,298) 2,840 (458)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$247,685,000 (2017:
HK$217,179,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of tax losses of approximately HK$230,471,000
(2017: HK$202,369,000) as, in the opinion of the directors, it
is uncertain whether sufficient future taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$48,197,000 (2017: HK$39,074,000) that will expire in five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in a subsidiary with uncertain future operating profit
streams.
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R > AN B A E A 2 BUE G R
#1247,685,000% J& (=& — L 4F : 217,179,000
W0 AT R B A i S R B E X A
Z % 2 R R B i A o A% B £9230,471,000%5 JG
R B4 1 202,369,000 75) Z B IEH i I
T R Ly MR R TE 28 > R B i b R B
T S i A5 5 4 1 A 2 M SR ¥k ) T 36 K 0
HiEH -

A 45 [ g5 A b B K e R A R TE S 1H 48,197,000
WOt (=& — L4 £ 39,074,000¥ 0) » I A%
FAE B > W EEHCEY H R R A o i
B JE R R AR B — T AR 2 48 48 Y A R AS W R
Z PR JR o W] o WOOR A R L T R 20 S A VI E o



23. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

24

25

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2017: Nil) for taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s
subsidiaries.

Notes to Financial Statements
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23 B BLH ()
Y A B 08 ()
TR IO » PG R S5 22 7 2 B

BT A 2 A L e 35 R R A e 2 HaE
HAMR(CFR L8 ) -

SHARE CAPITAL 24, JBe AR
Shares B4y
2018 2017
R\ —E—t
HK$’000 HKS$’000
BT BT
Issued and fully paid: ST RHAR -
259,586,000 ordinary shares 259,586,000/8 1% 48 it 117,095 117,095
Share options I B

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in
note 25 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, other employees
of the Company, and any director or employee of the Company’s
subsidiaries and entities in which the Group holds any equity
interest.

On 28 August 2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”). The Scheme is valid and effective for a period
of 10 years up to 27 August 2022, after which no further share
options will be granted but the provisions of the Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect in all other respects. Share options
complying with the provisions of the Listing Rules which are
granted during the duration of the Scheme and those remain
unexercised immediately prior to the end of the 10-year period
shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms
of grant as within the share option period for which such share
options are granted, notwithstanding the expiry of the Scheme.

AR ) 2 B PR S 1 SO B 2 o B 25 o

25. Jilk JBE B il 8

A0 ) A i PR T A R Ok S A I 3 A AR
MEEEGAAREMZAERZIME - 5t #)
ZHEB2MEQEARAF 2R (LHFEHT
FEATH ) - H bR B KA A R W8 A R K
A 5 T B A B i B A T o R
fEH o

REF—-ZENHZHNH > KAFRMA—H
Ji e it 0 (T80 1) o b 2 A 2800 2 1047
EOROHENASTHEARILL s RREAE
P 452 A A i P B > AR 2 R AR B A A
05 TS R A2 3 B A 3K o B AR A b i BB
BIF > S BI04 A RO R AR > B AR F #)
Yo i S 08 AR AT O 2 S B REE o A7 T 4% i e
BERR R Z R AEATBE > A SZ 5t BT S 28 -
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 25. B hEwT A (4F)

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permited to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 25,958,600 ordinary shares, being 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue on 28 August 2012. As at the
date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme is 25,958,600 ordinary shares, representing
10% of the existing issued share capital of the Company. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is a grantee of the share options). In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of each
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28
days from the date of offer, upon receipt of the duplicate offer
letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by the
grantee with the number of shares in respect of which the offer
is accepted clearly stated therein, together with payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee to the Company
provided that no offer shall be open for acceptance after the
expiry of the Scheme or after the Scheme has been terminated.
The terms and conditions of the share options granted are
determinable by the directors on a case-by-case basis. Such
terms and conditions may include, but are not limited to (i) the
subscription price; (ii) the period within which the Company’s
shares must be taken up under the share option, which must not
be more than 10 years from the offer date; (iii) the minimum
period, if any, for which a share option must be held before it can
be exercised; and (iv) the performance target, if any, that must be
achieved before the share option can be exercised.
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B AR 8 S 25 5 2 i R AT 8 R
T 5 3 H %525,958,600% 3% 48 B o HH & R A A
AAESE-_"FNA T NHOBITREZ
10% o RARER A B B > AR S 580w Bt 8t 47 =2 i
1y ¥ H #525,958,600/8% 35 488 B > AH 4 A A F]
B O BT RAR Z10% o 784+ Z{F A #i #H
N BBEt TR RH NS GEK2HE
BEAT 2 B 10 PR A St A A5 48 30 A A ) AR AT AT IR
Bz CBAT IR 2 1% o fRAT 3 —353% i i it
PR A 2 B8 T ME - B 2 A6 B SRR & b BA IR AL
;&o

BYAAFES - R TBA BB
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 25. 0 JBe p it 3 (4)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the R T E bR EE S EEEE c AR
directors in their absolute discretion at the time of the making of AT ZE A % S R e T s AR
the offer which shall be stated in the letter containing the offer, T DL T 88 5 3 () A 2 W] A 7 s 157 H I R R
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of HEHAAERSH) RS HRERTHRZ
the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily We i A8 5 (i) AR A ] A S 25 e 157 HE N PR A s vk
quotation sheet on the offer date which must be a trading day; H 31 5 A8 22 55 B A3 e 45 H 008 36 i i)
(ii) the average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares as SR AE 5 KGR A T AR Z HAE o

stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or T R A N 2 IR 4 AN WU B B B R R
to vote at shareholders’ meetings. ERREZRET -

During the year, no share option was granted to the directors and AEN s WEMERT W S B RE T AN B 3 S R HAh R
other employees of the Company or any director or employees B s AR A 5] B R A T R A 4 13 A AT {A] A hE
of any of the Company’s subsidiaries and entities in which the W HBEZ EMERSER (ZF—bLHEE) .

Group holds any equity interests (2017: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no share AR R > AR T EEE T S8F e 3R 4T (0 5
options outstanding under the Scheme (2017: Nil). B (= — b4 |E) o

26. RESERVES 26. fii fhi
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein 245 B AR AR N S B A AR B 2 Rl S L 5 ) A Bt
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated BRGSO HEZEAMSZHMENLEY -
statement of changes in equity on page 65 of the financial
statements.
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Foreign WA B ELENER IR > AL
Investment Enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s 5] A o B R B DL AP R G A 2 RS 2 s
associates operating as Foreign Investment Enterprises in N B R GE W B ) 985 4 s A A A T A A T
Mainland China has been transferred to the share of other ZHAbREM e R NE=ZH=1+—H &
reserves of associates. As at 31 March 2018, the share of other Ak 66 4 N ) =2 Al fk 4 254,168,000 T (&
reserves of associates of HK$4,168,000 (2017: HK$3,877,000) —-L4E 1 3,877,000 50) > & A W] 4 IR B A
was non-distributable in nature and could be utilised to offset the & WA HAERE P EE ZEHE -

losses incurred.
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27. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 27. BE ML ZHE

(a) As lessor (a)

The Group leases certain of its land and buildings under
operating lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for
terms of termination by one month’s written notice.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenant falling due as follows:

fe ks ALA

AR [ K A R R R AL B T e
o KT T Z AHLA AT DA — {8 7 3 A
DI -

TR IR > AR SR AR 8 R AR A W] 8 2
AR FH AR T 7 T 51 39 R W 2 e R <6 4
WWE

2018 2017
—®— N\ —Z2 -t
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T BT
Within one year —4E RN - 25
(b) As lessee () fEHAHEA

The Group leases certain office premises, a staff quarter and
a restaurant under operating lease arrangements. Leases are
negotiated for terms of two to three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

AL BB E LM EE THAEY
- BT & RRHE - R Z MAEH
RWE R o

T A BT R o AR B8 AR 4 AR 20 S T 2
AR LA T 7 T 5 39T PR A 2 de (I L < 4
HWAE -

2018 2017
. SVAS 2 . 2
HK$’000 HK$000

T W T T

Within one year —4ERN
In the second to fifth years RSB HAENR
After five years A%
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28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

Notes to Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Bt %5 ¥R 5 Y AE

31 March 2018 Z2—N\E=A=+—H

28. &5 47 Bl A AL B M ik

0 Y P A R S )

Interest-bearing
bank borrowings
¥ pilpsy

Z AT K
HK$°000

T T

At 1 April 2017
Changes from financing cash flows

At 31 March 2018

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) The Group had the following material transactions with

W _ZF—tEWA—H 160,683
MEBEREEH 1,878

W_F—-NE=ZH=1+—H 162,561

2. AN LR Y
(a) AEW > ANEE SICEEEA LT FAER A

its related parties during the year: RY:
2018 2017
RN\ ZR— LA
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
M 7t BT T W oo
Rental income received from a related Ii1) B L 2 R] WOE A 4 e A
company 1) 192 192
Rental income received from associates 1) B 2 A ) ICBRURE 4 e A (ii) 257 332
Sales of goods to associates ) B 2 A R B R (iii) 366 430
Purchases of goods from associates 7] M 4% 4 ) BR B S (iv) 41 -
Purchases of goods from a non-controlling [ JE 5 Ji& JB 5 £% i £ /i
shareholder (iv) 282 -
Commission income from associates A H B AR Z e A v) 900 1,194
Commission expense to associates BTHEARZIMERZ ) 74 228

“E-N\EER | ERARRREERERLT
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(a) The Group had the following material transactions with

its related parties during the year: (continued)

Notes:

(i)  The tenancy agreement was entered into with the related party
on mutually agreed terms. The leases can be extended and
renewed until terminated by either party.

(i) The tenancy agreements were entered into with associates
on mutually agreed terms. The leases can be extended and
renewed until terminated by either party.

(iii) The sales of goods to associates were made by reference
to prices and conditions similar to those offered to other

customers.

(iv) The purchases from the associates and a non-controlling
shareholder were determined by reference to prices and
conditions similar to those offered by the associates and a
non-controlling shareholder to their major customers.

(v) The commission income/expenses were determined between
the Group and associates.

The related party transactions in respect of items (ii) to
(v) above constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Since the
amounts in respect of items (ii) to (v) are below de minims
threshold for the purposes of Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules, items (ii) to (v) are fully exempt from shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements

under the Listing Rules.

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i) Details of the balances with associates at the end of the
reporting period are included in note 14 to the financial

statements.

(ii) The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder is unsecured,

interest-free and repayable under normal trading terms.
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SR 3 E R PP NSRRI P
25 (#)

W

R

() LB Toh Y B RN e e LR R 2 K
RIOL o RHAAT IS R A - ELEAEAT— T
TUHKILL -

(i) L Toh Y O R A LR E 2 K
RIOL o RHAAT IS R A - HLEAEAT— Ty
TUHKILL -

(iii) 1 W O W B B R D 2% 1 M F
Bt Z TUDLATTAR T Mk T e

(Qv) T W O ) T D4 BBt P SRCAR W T 2 25 T
O T I A SR T SR 1k L ZE A B AR AR 2 R
ACLAB e T Ao G A

(v) DS BH 32 T A A T SR 7 ] ]
HEE °

G REWEA B Z BN AR 5 R
T A0 B A2 By (3 b BRI S 14 A T IR
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A b i BRI S 14 A7 646 BT A Y B AR 6 4
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. BN LR Y (7)
(continued)
(¢) Compensation of key management personnel of the () ABEEFEAAMABRZHM :
Group:
2018 2017
R\ Sl s S
HKS$’000 HK$’000

W T T 0T T

Short term employee benefits 9108 B AR A 5,765 5,415
Pension scheme contributions PR Nl 1 P 47 42
Total compensation paid to key management EAGE XS UNESZL]
personnel Z T 4 5,812 5,457
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note S 2 — 2 R SO B T B
8 to the financial statements. 8o
30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 30. 4/ T H 2 4 8
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial PEHREHR > FBeM T RZIRHEMENT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Financial assets 4343
Loans and receivables
F2k B M 0k
2018 2017
—F N\ —Z2 -t
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T BT T
Trade receivables JE Wi B2 5 Mk 21,403 17,825
Financial assets included in prepayments, BLHE I FEA BRI ~ R 4 S At
deposits and other receivables (note 18) Wk JEH 2 4 il EE (M AELS) 1,828 2,571
Due from associates JRE W i 5 2 ) 297 30

Cash and bank balances B4 RRAT R R 68,427 39,341

91,955 59,767
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

31

HONG KONG FOOD INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2018

CATEGORY (continued)

30. & L H 2 48 ()

Financial liabilities 4 ik 11 4%
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
iz B Y D A N M ¥ 4 v £ £
2018 2017
—Z N4 L
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Trade and bills payables WA B 5 IRk B 5 6,876 8,074
Financial liabilities included in other payables and A5 7 JC Al JRE A 7k T B E
accruals (note 21) B & E M2 12,700 8,579
Due to an associate JBE A Wi 72 24 ] 41 344
Due to a non-controlling shareholder JRE A e i st g R 282 =
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ZE AT R B Z SR AT R 162,561 160,683
182,460 177,680

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
bank balances, trade receivables, trade and bills payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, amounts due from/to associates, an amount due to a
non-controlling shareholder and interest-bearing bank borrowings
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities
(2017: Nil).

3. & T H2Z2 AV

UG CRE o BLE KRBT - KR 5 IR
AR~ MEAT B 50 Bk B SR R B IR A RO
BT 4 B oAb FE WO OH < S b E - SR Al
JRE Ao R ok % ME it £ i 2 <l £ - MR WA B
B o] K~ REA I 40 B e SRk I DA e ZH
FEAB Z SRAT Bk Z 4 1 fi S MR T K B
Ao BB ST RREN RBY -

Bl A M B A TAE DL TR AR 5 T
(5 780 2 75 R 1) 5 R O ) W22 50 R Y AT 22 5 4
VN

AR PEN > 58— i B 3 g 2 [ I 8 S
w1 U DL K 4 S 4 b BB
T 2 56 = 3 S A g 2 UL (= F b
4 fE) o
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. W %5 M B 4 PR H B B R
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise AR AR T B A AEMNR B Z T
interest-bearing bank borrowings and cash and bank balances. HARRB G RRITHEG - ZFEEMTRAZEE
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise FAI& T ks AR [ 22 78 S il o AR B B A HE IR
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other B 5 Wk % A BT MR ik e 0 A A A 4
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade MhEERAE DTHHEKEHEREREE

and bills payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are PR AR 45 [ 2 4 il T T A 2 o R B 4 ) o
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity JEB ~ A RE B > £ B R B A U B A 4 LB o
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for B T A A TE A R B 2 R I
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below. RBEA T -

Interest rate risk ) M B

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest A 4 8] 8 AR A T 3 R R AL 2 R AR AR
rates relates primarily to the Group’s cash and bank balances and [ B 4 Je SRAT 45 17 B DL v B R R G B 2 4R
short term debt obligations with floating interest rates. BEMEAR -

The Group’s funding policy uses short term interest-bearing debts AR B 2 4 BOR T 8 S 30 2 S R L 2 AR
to finance its working capital requirements. The Group borrows BB R G ST o AL M EEZ B
mainly at floating interest rates. RAE K o

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably T M A4 H > BB RTREA R 8 e A 45
possible change in Hong Kong dollar and RMB interest rates, HE 25 s o0 R N R R R 2 5 B A aR A2 B) (B
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit/loss AHABR R R AE) 2 GURE (BRB4 KR
before tax (through the impact on cash and bank balances and ITHFRE B REREE) o

floating rate borrowings) and the Group’s equity.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

32. W 5 e g 4% B H B B BOR ()

(continued)
Interest rate risk (continued) % B ()
Increase/
(decrease)
Increase/ in profit/ Increase/
(decrease) in loss (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity*
B BE i
-3 -y 3 B g
Bom, () Bm, (W) B, (W)
HK$’000 HK$’000
BY T BT
2018 —RB )\
Hong Kong dollar Wt 50 (507) -
RMB NG 50 35 -
Hong Kong dollar #IT (50) 507 -
RMB N (50) (35) -
2017 —F—hdE
Hong Kong dollar #IT 50 632 -
RMB NG 50 (24) =
Hong Kong dollar T (50) (632) =
RMB NN (50) 24 -
& Excluding retained profits * A5 BV i A

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or expenses of operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies. The Group’s monetary
assets, financing and transactions were principally denominated
in Hong Kong dollar, United States dollar and RMB. The Group
is exposed to the foreign exchange risk arising from changes
in the exchange rate of the Hong Kong dollar against RMB. At
present, the Group does not intend to seek to hedge its exposure
to foreign exchange fluctuations. However, the Group will
constantly review the economic situation and its foreign exchange
risk profile, and will consider appropriate hedging measures in
future as may be necessary.
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32. W 5 e g 4% B H B B BOR ()

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

A WE B (%51)

F 0 B S n #h 8 > [RL I o AR A B DL S
T A Z BRAT 45 B S B A B2 5 MRk B 5 4 2 A
TR R o A 2 B /D o

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Since the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar,
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk in respect of the
bank balances and trade and bills payables denominated in United
States dollars is considered to be minimal.

TR R A R RE R A £ BT AR A ) - AE
A S PR A5 AN S Y RE DL > AR R B
JI R Y B3 B A M A (B 7 B O T 1
R AP B ) T A SR I A (ph e Ja 0] £
B A0 B 2 P18 5 ) B B0 Z BURBE S A

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit/loss before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities) and the Group’s equity (due to the
changes in the fair value of forward currency contracts).

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit/ loss (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity*
B Be i
3L wA Bl 2t
Bim, (%) B, (WA) B, (W A)
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
2018 —F N
If Hong Kong dollar weakens e TN L R
against RMB (50) 363 -
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens 7 #5 7t 5o, A\ F ¥ 5 24
against RMB 50 (363) -
2017 —F—hdE
If Hong Kong dollar weakens e TN L TR
against RMB (50) (265) -
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens #7 #5 70 5t A B ¥ 5 34
against RMB 50 265 -

¥ Excluding retained profits

o AR A

—E-N\FFEHR |
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. B %5 b B 4% B H BE B BOR (48)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and bank balances and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by analysis by customer/counterparty.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group as the customer bases of the Group’s trade receivables are
widely dispersed.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are disclosed
in notes 17 and 18, respectively, to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. W 5 e g 4% B H B B BOR ()
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) it ) o 4 L B (7))
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as R TET AR BB IR K > DL T R 51 AR 45 [ Y #t
at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual EHERZEMAMBRMA -

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

On demand or
less than 12 months

Wk Ak 1248
2018 2017
e SIS 2 —E—tg
HKS$’000 HK$°000
BT T oo
Trade and bills payables AT B 5 MRk B 52 6,876 8,074
Other payables JL b, JE A5F B 3k 12,700 8,579
Due to associates JBE Ak Wik 7 24 ] 41 344
Due to a non-controlling shareholder B A e e st i 3R 282 -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings BT R B Z SR AT B 163,494 161,577
183,393 178,574
Capital management YA B
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AR E 2 G ARG B E Ak AR A 4R B A AR
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and ¥R 5 2 2 I B 7 1 R M R B AR
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business Ll 2R DL 32 5 FC S B I K AL R M -
and maximise shareholders’ value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments A 452 B AR 280 P O A 2 A B A PR AR A
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or DL o K AR B BB A KM > AHE [ T
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend AR R S B TR 2 YRS~ 1 e BRI [ AR BB AT
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue B o
new shares.
As at 31 March 2018, there was no indication of breach of MN_FR—)\F=H=1+—H » EERHEZ
covenants. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or MR - NBE_ZEZ-NE=H=+—HE_ZF
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March —tLE=ZHA=+—HILEEN  EAREHZH
2018 and 31 March 2017. BE o~ B M R I B A ) o
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. Jo 5 M B A B R e SR ()
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)
Capital management (continued) BARER (H)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is A4 A B B B A bE R DL B e | AR > AH A
interest-bearing bank borrowings divided by equity attributable JE AR B Z SRAT B BR DA A A Rl RE RS T B
to equity holders of the Company. The gearing ratio is regularly JREAG BE #5420 £ 8 A L R g g A B
reviewed by senior management. The gearing ratios as at the end JE A o PIEEHIR » AEEARLRNT
of the reporting periods were as follows:
2018 2017
—F N —F b
HK$’000 HK$°000
T BT T
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ZE AT R B Z SR AT R 162,561 160,683
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company & J& 4 A W) # 25 Bt B & B RE 25 479,089 384,746
Gearing ratio HAEEAR LR 34% 42%
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

33. 7 2 W) B B IR DL

AT AR Z B AR LR G W -

2018 2017
it LS 2 e i S
HK$’000 HK$’000

T T T T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS e o) ¥

Interests in subsidiaries T B A 7] Z RE 25 83,572 124,409
CURRENT ASSETS Ui By A

Due from subsidiaries JFEE WA I Jeg A ] 81,761 31,021
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEAT SR ~ 5T 4 B At 8 Wk T 387 127
Cash and bank balances Bl & KRAT B 17 3,095 194
Total current assets B A AR 85,243 31,342
CURRENT LIABILITIES Ui 0 £ 5

Due to subsidiaries JRE A i I A ] 21,273 3,000
Other payables and accruals Al R Ao 5K I M i AR 3,601 3,566
Total current liabilities B A AR AR 24,874 6,566
NET CURRENT ASSETS Ui Bl 60,369 24,776
Net assets & E w3 143,941 149,185
EQUITY B 2%

Share capital A 117,095 117,095
Retained profits (note) PR ¥ wa A (M k) 26,846 32,090
Total equity HE 25 A8 {H 143,941 149,185

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen % & %!
Director # %

MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis 3¢ K #

Director # 3

—E-N\FFEHR |

ERRERBREEZRARAA



Notes to Financial Statements

Bt %5 8 5 B AE

31 March 2018 ZE—N\F=A=+—H

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

33. 7 2 W) BB R DL (A

(continued)
Note: M=k
A summary of the Company’s retained profits is as follows: AT R A BEE T

Retained

profits

PR B A

HK$°000

BT

At 31 March 2016 B -AEEH=+—H 36,717

Total comprehensive loss for the year AR AT JBE 48 2 T i 4R (4,627)
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 R LEHE=ZA=1+—HK

—&F—tLHFEMH—H 32,090

Total comprehensive loss for the year AR AT JBE 48 2 T i 4R (5,244)

At 31 March 2018 REF-N\FE=HA=+—H 26,846

34. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING 34. ) 4% FH

PERIOD

On 21 May 2018, a resolution was duly passed as an ordinary
resolution by shareholders of the Company in relation to the
disposal of its entire equity interest in Hung King Development
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary and beneficial owner of
the parcel of land and building in Sai Kung, Hong Kong, to
an independent third party pursuant to the sales and purchase
agreement dated 17 March 2018 for a cash consideration of
HK$250,000,000. The gain on disposal before tax is expected
to be approximately HK$199,000,000. The transaction has been
scheduled to be completed on 15 August 2018.

W-F—-NEHHA -+ —H> —HRELE
ARAFRRIERBR - EAAH B ILE=
HHEBRBREARAR (XA —HE2EHa
ZMEBAFR R ABFBEE WL R e
HREFAN)ZEHBMZ S ERHRE > BH
WmEEH AT NE=ZH+LH BHER
5 %5250,000,000% 76 o TH 7B AT H S W 2% 4 5
199,000,000 JG ° %A % Cal#I R =& — )\ 4
J\H+H HSERK -

35. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 35. g W
The comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss and AR L M AE AR 2 R R A B4R B B %
related notes to the consolidated financial statements have been A B R A B AR E R R
re-presented as if the operation discontinued during the current SEH TR P [ 4] © AR AR IR 8 (BERELL)
year had been discontinued at the beginning of the comparative
period (note 11).

36. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 36. W B 2 bk

HONG KONG FOOD INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2018

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 28 June 2018.

AP S CR =T \EANH A
51 L o oI 0 T % o
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